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GROUP STRUCTURE
REIRE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as follows:

RARER AR EEAEEERNARABRZBRLEIEMBARTMNT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary
Food Company

ERTHGEIRMBAT

Other domestic shareholders

HA W& B

H shareholders

HA% IR

40.61% 16.20%

44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company

Limited

tRREFEBEEERDBR AR

100.00% 52.03% 79.85% 100.00%
- Beijing Xinyang . Beijing Jingkelong
Beijing jingkelong Tonali Commeraial Beijing Chaopi (Langfang)
Shouchao e Facilties Trading Company Com ar? Lirgnited
Company Limited Company Limited Limited pany
e . b RREE
5 NY7aN
. RSB RS (B55)
b HEARAR BRAR]

100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket
Chain Company
Limited
IERRERE
BRAT
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
SERWME

HHH+

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | hereby present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2012 represents an extraordinarily hard year for the Group. The
growth in global economies had slowed down, the downward pressure
on domestic economic growth had gained momentum, and the annual
growth rate of the gross domestic product in PRC hit the lowest point since
2000. The industry of retail and wholesale of daily consumer products
which our Group is involved in had faced unprecedented pressure and
challenges. The impact of e-commerce, fierce market competition and
declining customer demand all contributed to the deterioration of our
sales growth, whereas the increase in labour cost, rentals and finance
cost deteriorated our profit growth. Food safety issues, relationship
between supplier and retailer and tax reform and other rapid changes in
policies resulted in a series of new issues that had to be faced by the
Group. Despite the changing economic environment and the operational
challenges, we have undertaken overall review of the Group, united our
employees and taken measures in order to hold back the downward trend
of our profit growth and to establish a strong basis for future sustainable

development of our Group.
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In the retail business, with an increasingly fierce market competition,
impacts on traditional retail markets and an unfavourable consumer
market, the Group’s retailing business recorded a downturn for the
first time over the past few years. The Group continued to adhere to
its strategy of regional expansion by opening new stores and refitting
existing stores in the Beijing and Langfang areas, which in turn further
consolidated the operational proportions of directly-operated stores.
In order to stabilise sales volume, we have taken adjustments and
optimising measures in respect of unification of procurement, unification
of marketing and store operational management, such as by attempting
to introduce new models of procurement and marketing of in-house
branded merchandise, adjusting product structure to speed up turnover,
attracting more customers into the stores through strengthening the stores’
community service function and increasing promotion frequencies. We
have consistently upgraded our logistics systems, improved distribution
efficiency to lower operational costs of stores at the front end and
built new transfer warehouses for daily distribution products which is
expected to set the logistics basis of lowering stock deficiency rate of

daily distribution product and improving sales.

In the wholesale business, by consolidating the Group’s advantage, the
Group continued to make greater endeavours in the expansion of its brand
development and coverage. The Group has strengthened cooperation
with suppliers and introduced new brands, developed new product range
and hence improved brand coverage. The Group continued to expand
its distributorship network by setting up three subsidiaries, which in turn
strengthened the Beijing market and expanded into the Shanxi Datong
market and the surrounding areas. As test projects, certain key brands
have been distributed throughout the nation and the distribution network
has expanded. In relation to distribution channels, we have paid great
attention to the development trend of e-commerce, increased cooperation
with e-commerce service providers, allocated more resources on well
known brands, adapted with the new developing trends of the industry,
adjusted operational management model, optimised resource allocation

and improved the management level of the wholesale business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

° Revenue was approximately RMB9,183,922,000, representing an

increase of approximately 6.4% as compared to 2011;

° Gross profit was approximately RMB1,361,164,000, representing

an increase of approximately 4.9% as compared to 2011;

° Gross profit margin was approximately 14.8%, representing a slight
decrease as compared to 15.0% in 2011;

° Profit attributable to equity holders was approximately

RMB105,104,000, representing a decrease of approximately 50%

as compared to 2011;

° Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB0.25 (2011:

RMBO.51); and

° The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.10 (tax inclusive,

2011: RMBO0.20).

OUTLOOK

In the year of 2013, we anticipate that the global economy will remain
subdued, and with the domestic economic structure of the PRC still
undergoing adjustments and restructuring and facing multiple crisis and
risks, the macro-economic environment is still volatile. In view of the
increasing competitive market conditions arising not only from the fierce
competition among industry participants but also from the development
of e-commerce and the transformation of consumer patterns, the impact
to the traditional retailing business is expected to be further expanded.
With the increase of the statutory minimum salary standard and welfare
basis, the labour cost will inevitably increase along with the rising of
rentals, energy expenses and other operating costs. On the other hand,
with the extension of the “stimulate domestic demand and facilitate
consumption” policy and the increase in urbanisation rate, household
income and consumption standards, residential consumption is expected
to maintain steady growth.
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In the year of 2013, facing difficulties and challenges, the Group is
presented with a perfect opportunity to undergo adjustment and
transformation. Since 2012, the Group has evaluated its insufficiencies
and assessed the experience of other industry participants. We have taken
measures within various procedures, such as in the areas of procurement,
distribution and sales with the aim of increasing sales, improving the
contribution of product operations and lowering cost. We worked hard
to break through development barriers within the existing operational
management model through improving timeliness and extensiveness of
data in our existing database and transforming traditional price focused
promotion to consumer demand oriented promotions. In respect of market
operations on custom-ordered products, in-house brand products and
imported products, profit will be improved via integration of product
range and the product’s contribution to our operations will be improved
through the speeding up of turnover rate and increasing of gross profit
rate. Further, up-to-date supporting data and business intelligence
analysis will be provided to enable transformation of our existing extensive
operational management model operation to a meticulous approach.
We will continuously upgrade our logistics system, on the one hand,
increasing efficiency of the operations of the fresh food distribution centre
warehouse built in 2012, expanding our coverage to more stores with a
wider product range beyond our daily distribution services to convenience
stores, lowering small and medium shop’s stock shortage condition and
integrating multiple business items to fulfil the residents’ needs on daily
distribution products, which will in turn attract more customers and
increase sales; and on the other hand, increasing the synergy effect
between the stores on the front end and our procurement department
through enhancing the efficiency of our normal-temperature distribution
centre, for instances, by adopting a “no inspection upon receipt” policy in
the stores upon lowering the error rate of distribution and in turn reducing
the number of logistics employee required in the stores, undergoing
internal simulations on logistic fees chargeable regarding certain product
categories in order to estimate the logistics costs from distribution of such
products from the distribution centre to the relevant stores and in turn
increasing net profit, and enhancing economic efficiency of the logistics
system by increasing a certain item’s storage distribution. The Group
believes that by conforming to our development strategy, confronting the
relevant problems and difficulties and continuously resolving those issues,
we will be able to turn the tide, resume the position and growth of our

Group and in turn generate stable returns for our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support to all investors, business
partners, suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and
our appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
25 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year of 2012, domestic economy remained subdued and situated
in the middle of the recession period amongst the rapid growth over the
past 10 years. The traditional industry of retailing and wholesaling of daily
consumer products faced fierce competition and obvious impact, and
the operating situations were difficult. The Group experienced the most
difficult year since the 2008 financial crisis. The Group believes that by
undergoing reviews, identifying the issues and implementing appropriate
improvement and reformation measures, we will be able to resume growth

in the near future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adhered to its long term sustainable
development strategy and continued to expand its retail network and
focus on adjusting and modifying its procurement, distribution, marketing
and management process. The annual sales figure increased, but under
the high pressure of labour cost, rentals and finance cost, the Group’s

profit decreased significantly compared to last year.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Prudently expanding the retail network

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to adhere to its
strategy of regional development, and opened 17 retail stores in Beijing
and Hebei Province, comprising 13 directly-operated retail outlets
(including 2 hypermarkets, 4 supermarkets and 7 convenience stores)
and 4 franchise-operated convenience stores. The net operating area
of directly-operated retail outlets was increased. In addition, the Group
renovated and upgraded 5 existing stores, and in turn improved the

shopping environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T Mo

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 250 as at 31 December HEZT——F+Z-—A=+—H ' AEEHEEFT
2012. The following table sets out the number and net operating area of & 54250/ « TRFMEIIALEAR T —ZF
the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2012: T A=+ —HMZEEMEHEMFEEmME
Department Convenience
stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets stores Total
BHERES REH mERBm BFE &%

Number of retail outlets ZEMEHE :

Directly-operated BEEE 2 10 77 71 160

Franchise-operated Rt IR JE _ _ 1 89 90
Total At 2 10 78 160 250
Net operating area REEEE

(square metres): (FHK):

Directly-operated BEEE 39,742 79,058 160,572 15,964 295,336

Franchise-operated SRS _ _ 880 16,779 17,659
Total At 39,742 79,058 161,452 32,743 312,995
Diversified marketing TISEHELT XN SR
In regards to the dampened consumption sentiment, the Group has #¥MHEEEREX - THEATRNTISE
attempted to utilise various marketing activities, such as the procurement A = * B1F - TR IEE BT HIERE - BEaEIL

of tailor made products to attract more customers with lower prices and
at the same time ensure a certain level of gross profit. The Group has put
more efforts in introducing import goods in the selected stores to cater
to the upgrading consumption demand. The Group has also established
the “8+2” vegetable procurement channels, i.e. the three supply rings
and the two procurement bases around Beijing, developed the direct
procurement bases, combined the order agriculture model with direct
distributions to the stores to improve the efficiency of the fresh food supply
chain. Further, the Group focused on the operation of fresh produce and
adopted meticulous management approaches in relation to procurement,
display, sales techniques and timely stock clearances which improved
the overall operational management level in respect of fresh produce,
attracted market awareness and in turn enhanced sales. In particular,
targeting the consumers’ needs in the northern areas of China during
the winter season, the live and fresh produce logistics centre has unified
the process of distribution of beef and lamb slices and made inspection
and installation of relevant sales facilities in all stores, which resulted in
a significant increase in the sales figures of the in-house branded beef

and lamb slices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Increasing service functions to attract more customers

In addition to the installation of all-in-one cards (— &), lakala (fz£41),
Electronic Funds Transfer at Point of Sale (8% %) and ATM services
of banks, the Group has also introduced the convenient project (£ X
ZEARIETER) of “Wanbosi” (B1EE). We also upgraded the service
functions of the convenience stores, including credit card fees and bills
payment service, purchase of lottery tickets, ticket reservations and
weather forecast services, for the purpose of attracting more traffic to

the stores.

Enhancing the basic store management

In order to cope with inflation, food safety issues, fierce competition and
the increasing awareness of consumers’ rights, the Group has arranged
experience sharing among stores in the Group and from other industry
participants through data analysis, inspection of business operations
and reviewing selected topics, with an aim to overcome the unfavorable
operating environment and to bring the business back to growth.
The Group has adopted relevant measures in category management,
layout management, display management, pricing management, stock
management, and service management and differentiation operation
strategy from surrounding competitors to seek the room for the increase

in sales and gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T Mo

Improving the efficiency of the logistics system

The Group’s normal-temperature logistics centre focused on the supervision
and review process against the sorting packing and procedures, with
an aim to decrease damage to products and errors arising from such
procedures. The Group implemented the “no inspection upon receipt”
policy for directly supplied merchandise, to improve the distribution
efficiency, and lower logistics cost, as well as save labour cost in stores in
the front end. Through receipt reservation service, the normal-temperature
logistics centre provided a “green pathway “ to VIP suppliers by utilizing
designated loading docks coupled with designated personnel, which, in
terms of an efficient receiving process, has significantly enhanced the
overall service level and working standard of the centre. After refining
its salary policy by introducing the piece rate approach in dispatching,
sorting, delivery and disassembling since 2011, the Group has further
adopted the performance-related pay in 2012 in respect of areas of stock
supplement, despatching, receiving and warehouse safe keeping, which

reduced the number of staff required but improved work efficiency.

The Group has constructed the daily distribution product warehouse
and put into use in live and fresh produce logistics centre, which united
distribution for daily distribution products for convenience stores and
further for small and medium supermarkets and assisted to resolve
certain problems encountered by those stores such as shortage of stock
and poor timing on replenishment of stock. The Group has adopted
techniques and procedures to keep vegetables fresh and hence reduced
the amount of damaged goods, applied and promoted the successful
experience on the pilot programmes concerning the modified atmosphere
packaging of pork produce, packaged fruits and vegetables, beef and
lamb slices to enrich the unified supply of processed and enhance the

operational fresh produce level.
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Operation results of retail business
An analysis of the revenue contributed by the Group’s directly-operated
hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience stores and department stores

is set out as follows:

o
ON

TREVNAEEEEKRES - EFE
LBERSHNEEWRARENEHDITEIE -

Increase/
2012 2011 (Decrease)
—B-=fF —E——F #/R/0ED)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARBT T ARET T (%)
Directly-operated retail outlets: BEZTEEH:
Hypermarkets RNES 1,184,770 1,179,164 0.48%
Supermarkets matm 3,003,756 2,789,847 7.67%
Convenience stores EFAES 323,240 317,395 1.84%
Department stores BEES 49,857 46,295 7.69%
(including commission) (BEfAelA) (42,183) (37,778) -
Total retail revenue ZEERAEE 4,561,623 4,332,701 5.3%
Gross profit margin (%) BEEAES  GeBETR
R JEEFZE (%) 15.1 16.2 -1.1
During the Reporting Period, the retail revenue of the Group increased & MR AAEB T E R AL KL5.3% T ER
by approximately 5.3%. This was mainly attributable to (i) the contributions ROZF——FTHFRBEHREAFHAMSE -

from sales of newly opened stores, and renovated and reopened stores
opened in the second half of 2011 and during the Reporting Period, and
(i) the Group adopted multiple promotions and enhanced service function

to attract more customers and increase in revenue.

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Expanding the distribution network coverage

To further develop its wholesale business, The Group has, during the
Reporting Period, introduced tailor made product, continued to explore
new sole distributorship channels, and new product categories, and on the
other hand, built new regional distribution network by setting up two new
subsidiaries in Beijing, one new subsidiary in Datong, Shanxi province. The
subsidiary set up in the end of 2011 in Jinan area, Shandong province
has commenced operations with positive sales results. The distribution

network coverage both in product line and region has been expanded.

RE D KEBEEHRRAENPIENHERRE
&(ii)$%}%ﬂy%&ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ  RIHRB I RE SR
e RSIFIR - RTTIHE -

B

DHEBRBEE—SEX

HEMAN AEE-FESIAEHER RN
BSIEFRE —HTHERFOERED HE
% BEEAELRMRFEMRMELG - LA
ARFEL—RHERR] - —F——FRAEUR
BEREMERVOHFARERRAES  HEDLHE
Rif e DHBEBENERREASHRNE—F
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Actively explore distribution channels to e-commerce

To cope with the development of the market trend, the Group has
utilised our resources to explore distribution channels to e-commerce
service providers, including seeking the support from suppliers of
well-known brands on e-commerce distribution channels, engaging
in online promotions and marketing, which formed one of the new

sources of sales and profit growth.

Diversify business team by nature and management

To cope with business development trends, the Group has adjusted
the model of operational management and set up a general operation
department, divided the marketing centre into units and strengthened
specialised management on sub-urban businesses in Beijing and
e-commerce distribution channels, thereby optimising resource

allocation and improved the level of specialised management.

Optimising and upgrading the logistics system

The construction of the No.4 warehouse in the distribution centre has
been completed, which increased the floor area of the warehouses
by nearly 2,000 square meters in order to meet with the wholesale
business development needs. The Group has initiated strategic
alliances with key customers and launched the construction of a
mutual distribution centre to target the distribution of high frequency
distributions involving multiple brands of small quantities, and has
adopted the model of alternate despatching where inspection has

been exempted to enhance distribution efficiency.
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Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale revenue and gross profit margin are analyzed as

HEBEERE
REBRBEEBWAREMEH IO :

follows:

Increase/
2012 2011 (Decrease)

—T-=F —Z——F #R/0ED)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARETR AREFT (%)
Revenue recognised by Chaopi Group I EBERAUA 5,122,822 4,833,722 6.0%
Less: Intersegment sales W DEEEE (536,489) (568,491) -5.6%
Sales to franchisees by the Company $HE T INERTE 4R 12,144 15,182 -20.0%
Consolidated wholesale revenue HBERSHWRA 4,598,477 4,280,413 7.4%
Gross profit margin*(%) ERE* (%) 12.3 11.6 0.7
* It represents gross profit margin recognised by Beijing Chaopi Trading  * ZEMERELAAUABERD BRI RENBR

Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Chaopi Group”)

including intersegment sales.

During the Reporting Period, the increase in the wholesale revenue
recognized by Chaopi Group of approximately 6.0% was mainly due to
(i) various marketing efforts arranged with suppliers to increase market
shares; (ii) the sales contribution from the new subsidiary and the Reporting
Period which were established in the second half of 2011; and (iii) the

sales contribution from newly introduced distributorship brands.

During the Reporting Period, the increase in the gross profit margin of
Chaopi Group of approximately 0.7% was mainly due to (i) the continuous
optimization of product mix targeting to increase sales of higher gross
profit margin products; and (i) the increase of bargaining power with

supplier due to the increase in business scale and logistics capacities.

A(EHEI L EE )ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ’l%ﬂt( EREo!

SHE) -

REHA - REEERNHERARLIERA
6.0% - FEZARN : ((EEHEEHMABBZ KN ER
HREIRATISME () 2B ——F T EERRE
HIARTER 0 T AR B R HE TR R (iR S 2
MFERIERENHE TR -

WE IR PHEEEROENETERAL0.7% -

ZEHRETTHENEREBRE  SEF
K mr S IB I R(NBEE AR IE 81T
MEBR D HEENERTT - HBROEEE R
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue ON

Gross profit EF

Gross profit margin (%) FEF (%)
Other income and gains H A Rz
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SHAK AR
Administrative expenses THAX

Other expenses Hib
Finance costs [ELEEIDEIN
Income tax expense Fr5®if X
Profit for the year FENHE

Net profit margin (%) A (%)
Profit attributable to equity holders [SYNEIL g

R B ARG
BREBERSE AR
163 M (%)

BRERAN - ARE(OT)

of the parent
Net profit margin attributable to
equity holders of the parent (%)

Basic earnings per share-RMB (yuan)

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after deduction

of the relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The increase of the Group’s revenue by approximately 6.4% during the
Reporting Period was primarily due to the increase in retail and wholesale

revenue by approximately 5.3% and 7.4%, respectively.

GROSS PROFIT

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately 4.9% as compared to 2011 mainly due to the sales and

margin increase in wholesale business.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains mainly comprise income from suppliers, rental
income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters, and

interest income.
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MR EE
Increase/
2012 2011 (Decrease)
—E-=F —T——1F ®BER/CRD)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARETR ARBTFT (%)
9,183,922 8,632,531 6.4
1,361,164 1,297,070 4.9
14.8 15.0 -0.2
679,172 600,580 13.1
(1,328,500) (1,153,666) 15.2
(265,792) (212,687) 25.0
(57,640) (53,039) 8.7
(158,776) (125,290) 26.7
(57,824) (79,957) -27.7
171,804 273,011 -37.1
1.9 3.2 -1.3
105,104 210,160 -50.0
1.1 2.4 -1.3
0.25 0.51
['ON

WARCEEMWERFE  NHRARNEALR
B RIHET -

REPN  FEEHRAERNC4%  T2HERE
REERMBEERWADFIERAI5.3%K%7.4% °

EFEREF=H

BRERAAN FEEAENR-_Z-——FHEY
49%  FTEEANMBERFHEBRLENERNE
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The Group’s other income and gains increased from approximately
RMB600,580,000 to approximately RMB679,172,000 by approximately
13.1% during the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase of income
from suppliers which were in line with the increase in revenue, and the

increase of rental income from newly-opened stores.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Selling and distribution costs mainly comprise of salary and welfare,
depreciation expenses, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and
maintenance expenses, transportation expenses, packaging expenses,

and advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs were approximately
RMB1,328,500,000 during the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 15.2% compared to 2011. The increase was primarily
due to (i) the selling and distribution expenses of the new stores, the
renovated stores and the new subsidiaries of wholesale business; (ii)
the increase labor cost attributable to the compliance legal requirement
for the increase in minimum wages; (i) During the Reporting Period,
more marketing activities were launched in response to the market
downturn and e-commerce; and (iv) the rental was increased to reduce

the connected rental transaction with the holding shareholder.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), depreciation

expenses and entertainment expenses, etc

The Group’s administrative expenses were approximately RMB265,792,000
during the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
of 25.0% compared to 2011. The increase was mainly because of the
increased labor cost comprised of performance based bonus relating
to the previous years, retirement benefit contribution, housing reserves,

and other social insurance.
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OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses primarily comprise business tax, city construction tax and

surcharges mainly charged on rental income and service income.

The Group’s other expenses increased from approximately RMB53,039,000
in 2011 to approximately RMB57,640,000 in 2012. The increase was
mainly because of the loss incurred in disposal of non-current assets

resulting from the closure of stores.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest on bank loans, bank overdraft and

debentures.

The Group’s finance cost increased from approximately RMB125,290,000
in 2011 to approximately RMB158,776,000 in 2012, and was primarily

due to increased short term bank loans from business requirement.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group was not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or deriving from Hong Kong during the

Reporting Period.

The members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a
rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from approximately RMB79,957,000 in
2011 to approximately RMB57,824,000 in 2012, primarily due to the

decrease in 2012 taxable profits.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year decreased by approximately 37.1% from approximately
RMB273,011,000 in 2011 to approximately RMB171,804,000 in 2012.
The decrease was mainly attributable to (i) under the press of fierce
competition and unfavorable economic condition, more promotions
has been held to attract more customers, allowing more profits to the

customers; and (i) the increase of labor cost, rental and financing cost.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMBO0.25
for 2012, which was calculated on the basis of the number of 412,220,000
shares, representing approximately 50% lower than the RMBO0.51 of

last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had non-current assets of
approximately RMB2,377,251,000, which mainly comprised property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB1,897,049,000, and non-
current liabilities of approximately RMB226,612,000 mainly including
interest-bearing bank borrowings of RMB200,000,000 and deferred tax
liabilities of approximately RMB11,061,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had the net current liabilities of
approximately RMB150,591,000. Current assets mainly comprised cash
and cash equivalents (mainly denominated in Renminbi) of approximately
RMB461,110,000, inventories of approximately RMB1,535,946,000,
trade receivables of approximately RMB1,399,046,000 and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately RMB711,998,000. Current
liabilities mainly comprised of trade and bills payables of approximately
RMB1,075,588,000, interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
RMB2,337,707,000, and other payables and accruals of approximately

RMB666,689,000.
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INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an aggregate borrowings (all
denominated in Renminbi) of approximately RMB2,537,707,000, consisting
of trade receivables factored bank loans of approximately RMB50,000,000,
unsecured short-term bank loans of RMB2,287,707,000and non-current
secured long-term bank loans of RMB200,000,000. All the Group’s bank
loans bear fixed interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 7.2% per annum. The
secured bank loans were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings and
investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
RMB95,800,000 as at 31 December 2012. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group had approximately RMB4,200,000 time deposits used as

collaterals for bills payable.

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans amounting to RMB50 million (2011:
nil) was secured by factoring certain of the Group’s trade receivables with

carrying amount of approximately RMB89.6 million.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s gearing ratio® is approximately

71%, which is slightly higher than 70% at 31 December 2011.

* which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt.

According to an independent legal opinion, all the borrowings incurred

in 2012 are in compliance with the relevant PRC applicable laws.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in Renminbi.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.
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EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 8,386 employees in
the PRC (2011: 8,249). The total staff costs (including directors’ and
supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB568,703,000 (2011:

RMB494,871,000). The staff emolument (including for directors and

approximately

supervisors) of the Group are based on position, duty, experience,
performance, and market rates, in order to maintain their remunerations

at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2011:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the annual contributions.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes amounted to approximately RMB54,616,000 for the Reporting
Period (2011: RMB45,081,000).
During the Reporting Period, the Group continuously insisted on
competitive employment system, adjusted relevant policy boldly, enhanced
multiple assessment method, completed the recruitment process of
multiple store managers, deputy sore managers and administrative
staff of headquarters, fully adopted assessment system based on work
performance, mobilized employee, launched human resource information
platform which cover whole retail system, it could summarize, search
and analyze those information timely, also make HR management
standardized, efficient and logically. The Group enhanced the specific
contents of trainings, it held 52 seminars during the year, up to 5866

employee has benefited from it.
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PROPOSE A SHARE ISSUE

An extraordinary general meeting and class meetings of the H shareholders
and domestic shareholders were held on 28 May 2012 for considering and
approving, the proposed A Share Issue. The China Securities Regulatory
Commission took the application on 19 July 2012. Details of proposed A
share issue were disclosed in the announcement dated 23 March 2012

and circular published on 13 April 2012.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THREE SUBSIDIARIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”),
established three subsidiaries, Beijing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Company
Limited (* Chaopi Tianhua”), Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Company
Limited (“ Chaopi Shenglong”), Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Company
Limited (“Datong Beichen”). Chaopi Tianhua engages in the wholesale
of food and beverage business. Chaopi Shenglong engages in liquor
wholesale business, Datong Beichen engage in the wholesale of general
merchandise in Datong district, Shanxi province. Up to the date of
this announcement, the Company holds an indirect equity interest of
approximately 42.66%, 47.11% and 55.90% in Chaopi Tianhua, Chaopi
Shenglong and Datong Beichen. The registered capital of Chaopi
Tianhua, Chaopi Shenglong, and Datong Beichen are RMB10,000,000,
RMB20,000,000 and RMB26,000,000, which has been fully paid up by
Chaopi Trading.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, the Group had the following significant

event:

(@) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading,
Datong Beichen and an independent third party on 24 January
2013, Chaopi Trading agreed to transfer 30% of its equity interest
in Datong Beichen for a consideration of RMB7,800,000, which
approximated 30% of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Datong Beichen. After the completion of the transfer of
this equity interest, the Company holds an indirect interest of 55.9%

in Datong Beichen.

(b)  On 21 February 2013, the Company applied for issuing a debenture
in aggregate not exceeding amount of RMB750 million, with a
term of maturity of no more than 10 years on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The debenture will be guaranteed by an independent
third party, Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating

Management Center, a state-owned enterprise.

STRATEGY AND PLANS

In the year of 2013, the Group will take the opportunity to undergo
adjustment and transformation by evaluating all areas of operational
management and comparing with leading participants in the industry, in
order to identify opportunities to overcome unfavourable situations and

in turn reverse the currently declining operating results:
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Enhancing marketing ability of retail business. On the basis
of our current information management system, we will improve
timeliness and extensiveness of the data in the existing database,
and provide up-to-date supporting data and business intelligence
analysis. We will continuously develop tailor made products,
in-house branded products, imported merchandise and well-known
fresh produce, optimise our product mix, adapt to the change
in consumer demands and the consumption upgrade, improve
competitiveness through adopting different operational management
with the surrounding competitors, increase contributions of products
through increasing gross profit rate and turnover, promote diversified
marketing plans, strengthen sales data analysis, transform price
oriented promotions to demand oriented precise promotions and
fully utilise bank card promotion, mobile phone services and other

third party service system to increase sales.

Expanding the wholesale distribution network. The Group will
continue to expand the wholesale distribution network through
consolidating Beijing market share, exploring the potentials of its
subsidiaries in local market on the basis of the further substantial
cooperation with its suppliers and better marketing and logistics to
its customers. The Group will introduce more and more brands and
product lines to keep the sale growth, and explore the distribution

channels to e-commerce, group purchase.

Improving the competitiveness of services. The Group
will gradually implement refurbishment work on the shopping
environment of current stores, actively set up community service
platforms surrounding the stores and provide more convenient

service in order to attract more local customers.
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Improving the logistics and distribution system. The operation
efficiency of the new daily distribution product warehouse built
in 2012 will be improved. Other than providing daily distribution
products to convenience stores, we will expand our distribution
coverage to more small and medium sized supermarkets and
suburban stores with a wider product range, reduce stock shortage
and improve rate of replenishment of stock. Through satisfying our
customer’s daily needs in respect of daily distribution products, we
will attract more customers into the stores. We will also enhance the
efficiency of our normal-temperature logistics centre to increase the
internal synergy effect between the logistics, the stores on the front
end and our procurement department. This will include: adopting a
“no inspection upon receipt” policy in the stores upon lowering the
error rate of distribution, exploring internal logistics cost accounting
and charging system during the whole process of inbound, storage,
sorting, outbound to increase net product operating profit, increasing
the scope of cross docking logistics to enhance logistics efficiency.
We will further construct a vegetable processing centre to increase
the added value of vegetable products via rough processing,
meticulous processing and exquisite processing, and in turn increase

the operating profit.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\_LL/\-/-\— N

PEREAHSE

The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance framework
to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the Company and
long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The Group has adopted
the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices during
the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the Corporate
Governance Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012 (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with the
objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of the Group
and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent, and ethical way.
This corporate governance report describes the corporate governance
practices of the Group and explains the applications of the principles of

the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the Code Provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (applicable to financial reports covering the period after
1 April 2012) and the former Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’ retirement by rotation

as explained below.

Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, of a listed issuer
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that each director shall
be elected in general meeting of the Company for a term of not more
than three years, and eligible for re-election upon the expiry of the term.
Having taken into account of the continuity of the Group’s operation
and management policies, the Company’s Articles of Association do
not currently stipulate the mechanism in respect of directors’ retirement
by rotation and hence contains no express provision for the directors’
retirement by rotation and thus deviating from the aforesaid provision

of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries with
all directors, all the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and
code of conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout the

Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for safeguarding
the best interest of the Group and accountable to the shareholders.
Matters that are required to be determined or considered by the Board
include overall group strategies of the Group, substantial acquisitions
and disposals, capital transactions, annual, interim and quarterly results,
distribution of dividends and other substantial operating and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the
Board to the Group’s management include the preparation of financial
accounts for the Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board, implementation of adequate system of
internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with

the relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

The Board currently consists of four executive directors (Mr. Wei Tingzhan,
Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin), two non-executive
directors (Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent
non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi
Onward). Mr. Wei Tingzhan serves as the chairman of the Board. All of
the directors have fulfilled their responsibilities as directors throughout
the Reporting Period. Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the
2009 annual general meeting ("2009 Annual General Meeting”) held on
10 June 2010, they have all been appointed for a three-year term, and
will expire until the end of the annual general meeting ("2012 Annual

General Meeting”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin, will not
receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her
executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in
the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance based bonus (to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) and other allowance and benefits in
kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed
annual basic salary for each of the three-year term shall be approved
by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Wei
Tingzhan, being the chairman of the Board is entitled to an annual basic
salary of RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a performance based bonus
(to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results)
and other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law
and regulations. The two non-executive directors will not receive any
remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive director
is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum (tax
inclusive). Each of the other two independent non-executive directors is
entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax
inclusive). The aforesaid remunerations of the directors of the Company
have been considered and approved by an ordinary resolution passed
at the 2009 Annual General Meeting. The performance based bonus of
the chairman of the Board have been considered and approved by an
ordinary resolution at the 2010 annual general meeting (2010 Annual

General Meeting”) held on 10 June 2011.

- 30 wifh  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
S * BEIING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

EZeRBZRABETMNEE(BRMYE - %5 -
FXEBAHETEXR HHERE) -

FREXEL - FRBALLRBIRE K EITER
EXZ0E BEEREEEEADBANITEES
REFE(REERAIN) ROEHMW - 9B ES
FRMEEEARFH  RBEARAFEXEE
EMBRBESME TR RKEFBOERERR
EERNEYHE - IS8 =FEHANETE
EXFEHFRAARRESTERFHEZESHE -
ARBANEERFERELERELAFHFARE
700,000 (EH) REMER R (2 EARRFEE
RURTE ) A BB BRI BUARER R EE A
MEYHE - MEIFRTESTNREBUEFAESE
T ARBBYIFNTEEELIELLEEMEE
WEFESRTFARK154,758L(EH) - HE
MAUBYFRTESFHENETNEFTEERE
FARKEA1,8507T(EH) » L ARARREENH
MEL-—_FTNFRRBEFASERALAETER
HEE - BEERNERFHRECKE-_FT——F
AATEETHN T ZEFRREFAS(=F
—ZERRBFRE EFLA LT BRZEE



During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having
at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.
Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met the requirement of
having at least one independent non-executive director (Mr. Choi Onward)
who has must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has received
from each of the three independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation in respect of their independence. The Company is of the
opinion that all the independent non-executive directors are independent

pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be discussed. All
directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda
of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to inspect all relevant

corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 67 to 72

of this annual report.

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the general manager and executive director of
the Company is responsible for the Group’s daily business development

and management.

Another two executive directors, Mr. Liu Yuejin and Ms. Li Chunyan are
responsible for the retail operation and financial affairs of the Group,

respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code,

the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover potential

legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code provision,

the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the

directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate activities

with effect from 1 April 2012.

During the Reporting Period, 6 Board meetings (not including written

Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of directors

(including attendance in person or via telephone conference) are set

out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gu Hanlin
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Onward

Mr. Chen Liping

Mr. Wang Liping
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Attendance of director at the general meeting

During the Reporting Period, 6 general meetings, including one annual
general meeting, three extraordinary general meeting, one H shares
class meeting and one domestic shares class meeting, were held and
the attendance records of directors (including attendance in person or

via telephone conference) are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman) FEEEE(EFER)
Mr. Li Jianwen ESE

Ms. Li Chunyan EX=3

Mr. Liu Yuejin DR L
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Gu Hanlin BEEMSEAE

Mr. Li Shunxiang IERE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BERERAE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI SE A

Mr. Wang Liping F AR A

CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged to
attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may

count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
Reporting Period, all directors have participated in two times in-house
training courses and workshops in respect of corporate governance and
regulations organized by the Company, or by perusing materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to their duties and responsibilities and
participating in appropriate continuous development activities. All the
directors have provided a record of the training they received to the

Company.
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Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of Corporate Governance Code,
the management of the Company also provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect of
the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
developments in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional development

programme in 2012 is recorded in the table below.

Participated in training course

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman) #BEHEE (EFL)
Mr. Li Jianwen TENEE

Ms. Li Chunyan TEHRZL

Mr. Liu Yuejin D BRAES A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Gu Hanlin FEEMSE

Mr. Li Shunxiang FERE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIXFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BLERE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI e 4

Mr. Wang Liping FHIFEAE

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Wei Tingzhan and Mr. Li Jianwen are the chairman of the Board and
the general manager of the Company respectively, which are two clearly
defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the effective operation
of the Board while the general manager is in charge of the Group’s daily
business development and management. The Company’s Articles of
Association sets out the respective duties and power of the chairman

and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are 4 Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Strategy

Committee, to assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10
June 2010, the third session of the Audit Committee was established.
The Audit Committee wholly consists of independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward who was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping who were both appointed as

members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee provides an important link between the Board and the external
auditors in matters falling within the scope of the audit of the Group,
and is responsible for the review of financial information of the Group,
the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, and exercise the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external

audit, internal controls and risk evaluation and, provides comments and

suggestions to the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to develop
and review the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the directors and employees; and to review
the compliance by the Company with the Corporate Governance Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the Reporting Period for
reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and corporate
governance functions, including a review of the 2011 annual report and
the 2012 quarterly and interim results, and discussing relevant matters
including matters relating to annual auditing plans of 2012 and corporate
governance. The attendance records of the Audit Committee (including
attendance in person or via telephone conference) are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BRESRE(FE)
Mr. Chen Liping PR A
Mr. Wang Liping IRFRE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2012 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal
control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10
June 2010, the third session of the Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established, in which Mr. Wang Liping
(an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Wei Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Chen Liping (an
independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are inline
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to
the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for the Directors’
and senior management of the Company, and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for determining remuneration policy;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. In accordance
with the code provision B.1.2(c) (ii) of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Remuneration Committee have been delegated with responsibilities by
the Board, and is responsible for determining the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, and to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held for discussing and considering the performance-based bonus
of the Company’s directors and senior management for 2011. The
attendance records of the Remuneration Committee (including attendance

in person or via telephone conference) are set out below:

TRFRE(ERE)
BRI 5E 4
EEE L

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Wei Tingzhan*

* Mr. Wei Tingzhan was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10 June
2010, the third session of the Nomination Committee was established
(the “Nomination Committee”), in which Mr. Chen Liping (an independent
non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wei
Tingzhan (an executive director) and Mr. Wang Liping (an independent

non-executive director) were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in
line with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates
for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments, reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
(in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive) for

directors.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held for discussing and reviewing relevant matters including
the structure and composition of the Board of the Company and
the assessment of independence of the independent non-executive
directors. The attendance records of the Nomination Committee (including

attendance in person or via telephone conference) are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) PR Se A ()
Mr. Wang Liping TRFRE
Mr. Wei Tingzhan HEEHEE

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 10
June 2010, the the strategy committee of the Company was established,
which consists of three executive directors, namely Mr. Wei Tingzhan,
Mr. Li Jianwen and Ms. Li Chunyan, and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping. Mr. Wei Tingzhan
was appointed as the chairman. The main duties of the Strategy Committee
are to conduct research on the development strategy and consider the
strategic plans of the Company, and to make recommendations to the

Board for decision making on strategic development.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee (the “Supervisory
Committee”) of the Company consists of four shareholders representative
supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms.
Cheng Xianghong) and two staff-representative supervisors (Ms. Yao
Jie and Ms. Wang Hong). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves as the chairman of the

Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the auditing
process. It receives letter from the auditors confirming their independence
and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the auditors
to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The
Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the

appointment and retention of the independent auditors.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ({2 &) o B = R /5 @ 51 A 77) and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP ({2 kS5t EHAUGHREBRERE))
were appointed as non-PRC auditors and PRC auditors ( including
as the auditor for A share issue application )of the Company for the
period from the conclusion of the 2011 annual general meeting (“2011
Annual General Meeting”) to the conclusion of the 2012 Annual General
Meeting of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company agreed to pay Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (2%} « =R 5 &
=1£07T) and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP ({Z=#h#E k&t Hi =%
Fr(4&3E@mA %)) in aggregate amounting to RMB900,000 for 2012
auditing services and RMB100,000 for non-audit services in respect of

reviewing the Group’s 2012 interim financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 73 to 75.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s
assets. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board for ensuring
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal systems in respect

of financial, operational and risk management areas.

The internal audit department of the Company has been established in
2009 providing independent assurance to the Board and management
by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of

the Group.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29
of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the company
secretary supports the Board, ensures good information flow within the
Board and Board policy and procedures are followed; advises the Board
on corporate governance matters, facilitates induction of the Directors
and, monitors the training and continuous professional development of
Directors. He has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Reporting Period. His biography is set out in the
“Directors, Supervisor’s and Senior Management’s Profiles” section of

this annual report.

THE AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Article of Association of the Company

was amended in the following two occasions:
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On 31 August 2012, an extraordinary general meeting was held to
approve the amendments to the Article of Association. The amendments
to the Article of Association were made to reflect the structure of the
share capital of the Company following the transfer of certain domestic
shares of the Company held by certain promoters of the Company.
Further details are set out in the circular of extraordinary general meeting

dated 16 July 2012.

On 2 November 2012, an extraordinary general meeting was held to
approve the amendments to the Article of Association in respect of the
number of shares held by the promoters. Amendments were also made
on the articles relating to the scope of business of the Company in
view of the addition of “household electronic products” to the scope of
business the Company. Further details in respect of the amendment are
set out in the circular of extraordinary general meeting of the Company

dated 17 September 2012,

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general meeting,
the board of directors shall convene an extraordinary general meeting

within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Articles 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% (including 3%) or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to
propose new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same to
the convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda for the
meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of duties of

the shareholders’ general meeting.
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Pursuant to Articles 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting:
(1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more (including
10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting proposed to
be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or more written
request(s), the form and substance of which are the same, to propose
to the Board for holding of an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the meeting in the request.
The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene
the extraordinary general meeting or the class general meeting as soon as
possible. The shareholdings mentioned above shall be calculated on the
date when the shareholders make such written request. (2) If the Board
does not serve a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of
the aforesaid written request, shareholders individually or jointly holding
10% or more (including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right
to vote at the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may
sign one or more written request(s), the form and substance of which
are the same, to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding of
an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out
clearly at the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory
Committee shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene
and preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class meeting in
a timely manner. (3) If the Supervisory Committee does not serve a
notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, the shareholders making such request may convene the
meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt of the request
by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for convening such
meeting shall be as similar to those for convening a general meeting by
the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost incurred in connection with
the convening and holding of the meeting by the shareholders themselves
as result of the failure on the part of the Board and the Supervisory
Committee to hold such meeting as required above shall be borne by the
Company, and shall be deducted from the amount due to the Directors

and supervisors of the Company who are in default.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to establish a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhere to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclose the required information in
compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is disseminated

to its shareholders in the following manners:

delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

—  publication of announcements on the websites of the The Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company, and issue

of shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the Listing Rules;

- arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.

- the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is responsible
for liaison with investors and analysts by answering their questions
and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments from
analysts and investors on the operation of the Group, and selectively

adopting them in the Group’s operation; and

—  communicating actively with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and individual meeting with
institutional investors upon the announcement of results and making
decisions on material investments. The Group also participates in a
range of investor activities and communicates on one-on-one basis

with its investors regularly.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ view and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 4 of this annual report.
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PORT

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group at 31 December 2012 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 76 to 175.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10
(2011: RMBO0.20) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the Reporting
Period to shareholders on the register of members on 6 June 2013. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position. The arrangement of the closure of the register
of shareholders of H shares of the Company regarding shareholders’
dividends will be announced in the circular of the 2012 Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be dispatched to the shareholders. The
above dividend distribution proposal is subject to the approval by the
shareholders at 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Company. The
dividends to be distributed will be denominated and declared in Renminbi.
Distribution of the cash dividends for Domestic Shareholders will be paid
in Renminbi, while cash dividends for H Shareholders will be declared in
Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the
exchange rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date of
convening the 2012 Annual General Meeting at which the final dividends

is approved by the Shareholders).
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the “Detailed
Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic enterprise
which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder (i.e. legal
person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning from
1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for such
shareholder. Since the Company is a H share listed company in Hong
Kong, the proposed 2012 final dividend will be subject to the aforesaid
Enterprise Tax Laws. In order to properly carry out the withholding
and payment of income tax on dividends to non-resident enterprise
shareholders, the Company will strictly abide by the law and identify those
shareholders who are subject to the withholding and payment of income
tax based on the register of its H shareholders as on Thursday, 6 June
2013. In respect of all shareholders whose names appear in the register
of H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong
Kong as on Thursday, 6 June 2013 who are not individuals (including
HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate nominees or trustees, and other
entities or organizations that are all considered as non-resident enterprise
shareholders), the Company will distribute the 2012 final dividends after

deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) ( (BRI B4 RN BT 2[1993]0455% X RE 1L12 B BIEA TS
REERBEMBMA) (BT HK[2011]3485%)) (the “SAT Notice”) dated 28
June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends Paid
to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”) dated 4
July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the individual
income tax in respect of the 2012 Final Dividends paid to the Individual H
Shareholders whose names appear in the register of H-Shares Registrar
of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”) when distributing the
2012 final dividends in accordance with the law, as a withholding agent
on behalf of the same. However, the Individual H Shareholders may

be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax
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treaties between the PRC and the countries in which the Individual H
Shareholders are domiciled and the tax arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will finally withhold and
arrange for the payment of the withholding tax pursuant to the above the
SAT Notice and the Stock Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and
regulation, including the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation
in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment
Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa
[2009] No.124) ( (BRI BHENENE<IEERZI B E FB

BHHAEIT)>BAD (BIFE3£[2009]1245%) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)).
The Company will determine the country of domicile of the Individual
H Shareholders based on the registered addresses as recorded in the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 6 June 2013 (the
“Registered Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and
disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax
treatment of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from
any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:
(i) For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the
Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (i) For Individual H
Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than
10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at
the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the relevant
Individual H Shareholders would like to apply for a refund of the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid, the Company can assist the relevant
shareholder to handle the application for the underlying preferential
tax benefits pursuant to the tax treaties, provided that the relevant
shareholder shall submit to the Company the information required under
the Tax Treaties Notice on or before 31 July 2013. Upon examination
and approval by competent tax authorities, the Company will assist in
refunding the additional amount of tax withheld and paid. (jii) For Individual

H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
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into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more
than 10% but less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax
treaty. and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is
a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into any tax
treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the Company
will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on
behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the domicile of an Individual H
Shareholder is not the same as the Registered Address or if the Individual
H Shareholder would like to apply for a refund of the additional amount
of tax finally withheld and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify
and provide relevant supporting documents to the Company on or before
31 July 2013. Upon examination of the supporting documents by the
relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance given by
the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding provisions and
arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either personally or appoint
a representative to attend to the procedures in accordance with the
requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices if they do not provide the
relevant supporting documents to the Company within the time period

stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out on page 176 of the annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Company and the Group during the Reporting Period are

set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution are set out in note 34(b) to

the financial statements.
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BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings at the reporting date are set out in

note 30 to the financial statements.

Short -term debentures

During the Reporting Period, in order to raise working capital and
reduce financial costs of the Group, the Company issued short-term
debentures with a face value of RMB200 million on 10 July 2012, with
a maturity period of one year, which were registered at and approved
by the National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investor of
PRC (FREISRITRIZ SR E ). The short-term debentures are interest-
bearing at 4.55% per annum and issued through the Bank of Beijing
Company Limited. The issued short-term debenture with a face value
of RMB300 million and a maturity period of one year by the Company
on 24 August 2011 has been paid on the maturity of 24 August 2012,

and the Company has paid all the principal and interest.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the interest capitalized amounted to

RMB1,180,000 (2011: RMB1,011,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 18.32% (2011: 20.06%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
10.6 % (2011: 10.66%). Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 19.8% (2011: 21.2%) of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for

approximately 6.5% (2011: 7.0%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Hanlin
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Hong

Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence

from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view that

they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the

Company are set out on pages 67 to 72 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the executive
directors pursuant to which each has agreed to act as executive directors
for a three-year term with effect from 2009 Annual General Meeting,
and will expire at the end of 2012 Annual General Meeting. Each of the
executive directors, Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
(other than the chairman of the Board, Mr. Wei Tingzhan) will not receive
adirector’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive
duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company
which comprises a fixed annual basic salary, a performance based bonus
which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results
and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary and performance
based bonus for each of their term shall be approved by the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Wei Tingzhan, the
chairman of the Board is entitled to an annual salary of RMB700,000 (tax
inclusive), and a performance based bonus, the standard of which has
been approved by the 2010 annual general meeting, and other allowance

and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Gu Hanlin and Mr. Li Shunxiang,
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company pursuant to
which they have agreed to act as non-executive directors for a three-
year term with effect from 2009 Annual General Meeting, and will expire
at the end of 2012 Annual General Meeting. They do not receive any

remuneration.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward, Wang
Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as independent
non-executive directors for a three-year term with effect from 2009
Annual General Meeting, and will expire at the end of 2012 Annual
General Meeting. The terms of their service contracts are identical in all
material respects and they are entitled to receive fixed directors’ fees.
The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is RMB154,758 per annum (tax
inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive) for each of Mr.

Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Ms. Yao
Jie, Ms. Wang Hong, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong, has
entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the Company
pursuant to which each has agreed to act as a supervisor for a three-
year term with effect from 2009 Annual General Meeting or the worker’s
congress (as the case may be), and will expire at the end of 2012 Annual
General Meeting or the resolved date of the worker’s congress (as the
case may be). The terms of the service contracts or appointment letter

are identical in all material respects save that:
i Mr. Yang Baogun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

ii.  each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a fixed

supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is entitled
to remuneration based on her executive duties and responsibilities
(other than being a supervisor) in the Company which comprises of a
fixed basic salary, a performance-based bonus which is determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results and other
allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and

regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed to enter
into, any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are

disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

their subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN ACQUIRING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors and other body corporate to

acquire such rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and positions of the directors,
supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of
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Approximate
percentage
of total issued

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity domestic shares held domestic shares total issued shares
HERITRER HEBRITEARA
A 14 FREENRERRE BHRBEDL BB
(%) (%)
Wei Tingzhan Personal 1,545,104 0.67 0.38
(EiER] B A
Li Jianwen Personal 1,482,579 0.64 0.36
FEX A
Li Chunyan Personal 395,992 0.17 0.10
FEK & A
Liu Yuejin Personal 375,151 0.16 0.09
Gl A
Gu Hanlin Personal 797,203 0.35 0.19
FEIZM A
Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
ZIERE & A
Yang Baoqun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
HER B A
Liu Wenyu Personal 265,151 0.12 0.06
2135 A
Yao Jie Personal 125,051 0.05 0.03
ok (PN
Wang Hong Personal 82,5625 0.04 0.02
Far B A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
and any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
he meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
ere taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012 so far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of
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Approximate
percentage
of total issued

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity domestic shares held domestic shares total issued shares

HERITRER HEBITHARA

HE 514 FRFENRERRE BB BRBED

(%) (%)

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner 167,409,808 72.77 40.61
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Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

=L

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (Note 1) (FfzE1)
Cheah Capital Management Limited (Note 2) (Ff5£2)
Cheah Company Limited (Note 3) (Ff&E3)

Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited (Note 4) (Ff{3E4)

Value Partners Group Limited (Note 5) (Kft3£5)
Value Partners Limited (Note 6) (F{#¥6)

To Hau Yin (Note 7)
MITE(FFT7)

Cheah Cheng Hye (Note 8)
#1518 (fI5E8)

Schroders Plc (Note 9) (Fff3F9)

Templeton Asset Management Limited (Note 10) (Fff3£10)

JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 11) (FffzE11)
Schroder Investment Management

(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 12) (Fff3E12)
Genesis Asset Managers, LLP (Note 13) (FffzF13)

The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation (Note 14) (FffzE14)

(L)  -Long Position
(P)  -Lending Pool
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Total number of

H shares held
FrisEE 81T
HER B 2
29,264,000 (L)
29,190,000 (L)
29,190,000 (L)

29,190,000 (L)

29,190,000 (L)
29,190,000 (L)

29,190,000 (L)

29,190,000 (L)

21,846,000 (L)
14,604,000 (L)

14,536,018 (L)
13,946,018 (P)

13,036,000 (L)

12,749,000 (L)

9,621,739 (L)
9,621,739 (P)

(8
P)

Approximate
percentage of

total issued H shares

HEBRTHR

HEHNBNEIL

(%)
16.06
16.02
16.02

16.02

16.02
16.02

16.02

16.02

11.99
8.02

7.98
7.66

7.16

6.99

5.28
5.28

-AIE R AR ()

Approximate
percentage of

total issued shares

IEEBITH

HRANBNE DL

(%)
7.10
7.08
7.08

7.08

7.08
7.08

7.08

7.08

5.30
3.54

3.53
3.38

3.16

3.09

2.33
2.33
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12.

13.

14.
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Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to have an interest in the
29,264,000 H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations.

Cheah Capital Management Limited was deemed to have an interest in
the 29,190,000 H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations,
including Value Partners Limited.

Cheah Company Limited was deemed to have an interest in the 29,190,000
H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations, including Value
Partners Limited.

These 29,190,000 H shares were held by Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited in its capacity as a trustee.

Value Partners Group Limited was deemed to have an interest in the
29,190,000 H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations,
including Value Partners Limited.

These 29,190,000 H shares were held by Value Partners Limited in its capacity

as an investment manager.

These 29,190,000 H shares were held by To Hau Yin ((tT5 ) in the capacity
as the spouse of Cheah Cheng Hye (#1/&/8).

These 29,190,000 H shares were held by Cheah Cheng Hye (#1/&/8) in the
capacity as the founder of a discretionary trust.

These 21,846,000 H shares were held by Schroders Plc in its capacity as
an investment manager.

These 14,604,000 H shares were held by Templeton Asset Management

Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 14,536,018 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co. of which
13,946,018 H shares were in its capacity as a custodian corporation/an
approved lending agent and the other 590,000 H shares were in its capacity

as an investment manager.

These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers, LLP in
its capacity as an investment manager.

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation was deemed to have an interest in
the 9,621,739 H shares through its interest in its controlled corporations.

GEE

1. Commonwealth Bank of Australiai® 8 E ik
LR F M - AR 250 5%29,264,0000xHAR
HHERER

2. Cheah Capital Management Limitedi% &£ A E AT
P2 IE) A E (B FEValue Partners Limited) R94E25 -
AR B F%29,190,0000% HAR  # B 1 = ©

3. Cheah Company Limitedi® i@ 7 E BriZ 4 g0 % B
(B 3EValue Partners Limited) 894235 @ AR A%
29,190,000A%HAR F A A 1% ©

4. 1£%529,190,000f&H& FHang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited A A 1D B #E2S -

5. Value Partners Group Limitedi i@ 7 £ Fri2 4l 69
SEE (B3 Value Partners Limited) EViEsS » #4845
#7%29,190,000% H& F #E A 1 = ©

6.  It529,190,0008%HA% FAValue Partners LimitedA
BWEKIBESOEEER

7. 1£%29,190,000/Hf& B To Hau Yin (115 &) A
Cheah Cheng Hye(#/5/8) 2 B F D E#x%E -

8.  1£%529,190,0008%HM% F1Cheah Cheng Hye (/&
) ABIBE TR AR B (D E fEas

9. 11t%21,846,000/%HAX f Schroders PlcbA % & £F 38
B & I3 A S

10, 1514,604,0008%HA% FaTempleton Asset Management
Limited AR E IR S 05 H 1 -

11, 514,536,018 HA% FJP Morgan Chase & Co.%
BiEzS - 213,946,018 HL AR E AJKE/ 12
BHRBASOREEZ - HER590,00008HA% LA
BEEES DI AER

12, 11£513,036,0000%H% BB Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) LimitedA$% & 4532 &5
s -

13.  £512,749,000/%HA% B3 Genesis Asset Managers,
LLPAR B IR H 5B o

14.  11%9,621,739HA% A The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporationi& B E A H ATEHl ) A B M 15 B

< o

BX
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Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2012, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following

continuing connected transactions:

BREXFEBREN  BARRES  EERFE
TBABHM R_ZT——F+=_A=+—8"
BEAMAL(RARES EEREBTHRAS
BRIMNRARRRG - BERGOKESES - %E
SR BB IRIBGE S AR EHI ) EXVEE2 &
SN EPEAG AN T R PTE S KR - SR
B(ES RIS IEN)EBIEBELALRRFEE
st ez Ok E -

FEBRERS

BEHA ARBETTOTHERERS

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEFT
1 Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary HRIARHEMETFARE(HET) 745 3,842
to the Company (note 1)
2 Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary HINBHEWE TGN (H3E2) 17 17
to Xinyang Tongli (note 2)
3 Lease of a property by Tengyuan Xingye BREZEHEEMETARE(HFE3) 2,678 2,100
to the Company (note 3)
4. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary AR RHEYE THABE (T4 - 492
to Chaopi Trading (note 4)
5  Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to HREIAFN —_ZEZLFHEME - 948
the Company in 2007 (note 5) FARRNA (W&S)
All the above continuing connected transactions are also reported  FMliFEEERZFMEABEALRZEEREY
as related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the financial — #¥R&XMI5E39 °
statements.
Notes: MiaE -
1. Pursuant to the three lease agreements, the three supplemental lease 1. REAQRFEIELFITHGIRREQR(HEA

agreements, a confirmation letter and a memorandum entered into between
the Company and Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang
Auxiliary”) during the period from 30 April 2004 to 12 August 2008, Chaoyang
Auxiliary agreed to lease to the Company certain properties (referred to as
the JKL Properties on page 110 of the introduction document dated 29
June 2007 in connection with the Main Board Migration (the Introduction
Document)) for terms of between 10 years to 20 years commencing on 1
January 2004, 1 July 2005 and 1 July 2006 (as the case may be) with fixed
annual rentals (inclusive of the relevant business and property taxes) for four
to six year periods (as the case may be). The rental is paid in advance on

a quarterly or half-yearly basis (as the case may be).
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On 30 June 2011, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District (“Chaoyang SASAC”) approved
the transfer of the properties aforesaid, except the five properties which the
company continued to rent and five properties which the lease are terminated
undermentioned (the “transferred assets”) from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing
Hongchao Weiye Company limited, a state-owned company wholly owned by
Chaoyang SASAC (“Hongchao Weiye”) at nil consideration. On 1 July 2011,
a modification agreement of the lease agreement was entered into between
the Company, Chaoyang Auxiliary and Hongchao Weiye under which the
Company agreed to continue to rent the transferred leased properties from
Hongchao Weiye, to continue to rent five properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary,

and to cease to rent five other properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary.

On 18 June 2012, a supplemental lease agreement (the “Supplemental
Lease Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Chaoyang
Aucxiliary in relation to the properties of Chaoyang Auxiliary. Pursuant to the
Supplemental Lease Agreement, the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary agree
to (i) increase the leasing area of one of the properties leased from Chaoyang
Auxiliary to operate as the training centre, and (i) adjust the rental payable for
all five properties leased from the Chaoyang Auxiliary according to the rental
evaluated by the property assessment firm with 31 December 2011 as the

case assessment date, with increase in accordance with the term.

Chaoyang Auxiliary is the controlling shareholder of the Company which
owns approximately 40.61% of the issued share capital of the Company,

and is also one of the promoters of the Company.

All the leased properties (with a total gross area of approximately 5,607 sg.m)
are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing and are principally used by the

Company to operate 4 convenience stores and 1 training centre.

The aggregate rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary was approximately
RMB745,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012, and ranging from
approximately RMB1,327,000 to approximately RMB1,407,000 per annum
during the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 July 2004 and a supplemental lease
agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Company Limited (“Xinyang
Tongli”), Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to Xinyang Tongli certain property
(referred to as the “Xinyang Property” on page 123 of the Introduction
Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1 January 2004 with a
fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant business and property taxes) for

each five year period. The rental is paid in advance on a half-yearly basis.

RZZE——FXA=1TH LtRTHEREEE
EEEERZES((HBERER ) BAR Y
(BT hREEHEMER AR ILEENEIN)
(T8EmzE ) BEREIR A EES B G RLTAE
%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ&uﬂﬁ%@ﬂﬁ%%
100%—REAREK) ([SAREX]) - —T——%F
tA—B  ARBEHARAT - LPEEFEE T(<
FEEREBHS-EERHE) - ER %%ﬁ%ﬂ1¥ﬁ
By BERARIAREEREYE
TEHEIAREEN TR -

“E-_FXATNE ARFEAR A TRAR
MEZZE—HHERRNOHABE(HITBED -
RIBZ WA BHRLE - AR RIAEIRERE@)E
n—gE B #E A ERFAEnENEERRANEH
DRE - RiEEBREIARRENAENED
HeRBIEARNZZE——F+-A=+—A0%A
FHERERFANESERREE  BiRdER -

HRIRBABARBMZERRE  FEARBL
40.61%H) B EETIAR ©

A A BRARR ) S AR T 7B R5,607 F 755K - 19T 7
ILRTTESE - B AEAE BT E R 1 B o
Ly o

(E T —F+ A=+ BLFEHERHE
AEEZAHERBELNABARE7450007T - B =
T - BRE-_Z-_=F+-F=+—H
HEESFHESEHARY1,327,000 EH AR
1,407,000T 15 -

RIEFA AR ELEAME RN EELEFEERAF
(TFRB58 77 1)) \:--Tmitﬂ BRIz oM E R
FRR-_ZTRAFEA-TABRI VAR RE
PRIAFARAEHETYE(BRNA LI XHE123
BEffEZIMBmEIRTREGES AP =T
TNE—-A-ARAN_+F SHEPENEHA
(BEBBEERDEBBETE - ZHeB¥F
AT AN -

20124F 3 59
AR EREEEERGARAR e |fx?.

ﬁ'\-#au



60

g * BEJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SWwE

On 14 December 2012, after trading hours, the Compensation Agreement
was entered into between the Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary,
pursuant to which Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to
terminate the lease agreement aforesaid due to the property demolition
policy, and Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to pay part of the governmental
compensation for the relevant property demolition received by it to Xinyang
Tongli as compensation. Further details were set out in the announcement
dated 14 December 2012.

Xinyang Tongli is an approximately 52.03% held subsidiary of the

Company.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for
commercial, office, warehouse and industrial uses, with a total gross area

of approximately1,362 sq.m.

The aggregate rental was approximately RMB17,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012. Xinyang Tongli will not to pay any rental to Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1 January 2013.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 2 July 2007 entered into between
the Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company
Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary, Tengyuan
Xingye agreed to lease to the Company a property (“TengyuanProperty”) for

a term of 15 years commencing on 1 April 2007.

On 1 July 2011, a “Termination Agreement in respect of Property Leasing
Agreement” was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan Xingye,
pursuant to which the Company and Tengyuan Xingye agreed that the
Company shall (i) cease to rent the Tengyuan Property and (i) pay a property
occupation fee on the basis of the rental immediately before the said cessation
of rent to Tengyuan Xingye until the Company returned the Property to

Tengyuan Xingye.

On 18 June 2012, a new lease agreement (the “Tengyuan Lease Agreement”)
was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan Xingye. Pursuant
to the Tengyuan Lease Agreement, Tengyuan Xingye agrees to lease the
Tengyuan Property to the Company for a term from 1 July 2012 to 31 March
2022, and re-assessed the leased area of the Tengyuan Property. The rental
payable is set according to the rental evaluated by the property assessment
firm with 31 December 2011 as the case assessment date, with increase in

accordance with the term of the lease.

Tengyuan Xingye is a 82% subsidiary held by Chaoyang Auxiliary.
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The Tengyuan Property is located No.52 Jiuxiangiao Road in the Chaoyang
District, Beijing, adjacent to a department store and a hypermarket owned
by the Company. It has a total gross area of approximately 7,195 sq.m. and
used by the Company as office, staff canteen and quarter, which to support
the aforesaid department store and hypermarket. The Tengyuan Property
is owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary, which has authorized Tengyuan Xingye to
lease and manage the Tengyuan Property.

The aggregate of the rentals and management fees payable to Tengyuan
Xingye by the Company shall be approximately RMB2,678,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2012, and ranging from approximately RMB3,204,000
to approximately RMB3,364,000 per annum during the period from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 30 April 2004 and a supplemental
lease agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Chaopi Trading, Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to Chaopi Trading
certain properties (referred to as the Chaopi Properties on page 122 of the
Introduction Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1 January
2004. All the leased properties are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing
for office and warehouse uses with a total gross area of approximately
12,271 sq.m.

On 30 June 2011, Chaoyang SASAC approved the transfer of one of the
office properties aforesaid from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Hongchao Weiye at nil
consideration. On 1 July 2011, a modification agreement was entered into
between Chaopi Trading, Chaoyang Auxiliary and Hongchao Weiye under
which the Company agreed to continue to rent one transferred property
from Hongchao Weiye and to cease to rent three other properties from
Chaoyang Auxiliary.

The aggregate rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary was RMB492,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2011. Chaopi Trading will not by required to pay
any rental to Chaoyang Auxiliary from 1 January 2012 onward.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 15 November 2007 entered into
between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed
to lease to the Company a property for a term of 16 years and 9 months
commencing on 1 April 2007. The leased property is located in the Chaoyang
District, Beijing with a total gross area of approximately 6,800 sg.m. and are
principally used by the Company to operate a hypermarket.

On 30 June 2011, Chaoyang SASAC approved the transfer of the property
from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Hongchao Weiye at nil consideration. Hongchao
Weiye agreed to lease the property to the Company since 1 July 2011.

The aggregate rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary was RMB948,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2011. The Company will no longer be required to
pay any rental to Chaoyang Auxiliary from 1 January 2012 onward.
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In connection with each of the continuing connected transactions for items
1 to 8 (on an aggregated basis), the directors estimate that the annual
caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2014 will exceed
0.1% but less than 5%, of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) under Rule 14A.34(1) of the then Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements pursuant to Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules and
are exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. An announcement has been made on
18 June 2012 and 14 December 2012.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) have
reviewed all the above continuing connected transactions during the Reporting
Period and confirmed that such continuing connected transactions are:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

b. on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

C. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Board has received a letter from the external auditors in relation to the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions:

a. have been approved by the Board;

b. have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing the transactions; and

C. have not exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the
announcement dated on 18 June 2012 and 14 December 2012.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of the
Listing Rules from 1 January 2012 and up to the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the

substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, or had any
other conflict of interests with the Group during the Reporting Period.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (12
eI =R TS :THITT) , whose term of appointment will expire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
and 2011 have been audited by Ernst & Young (% 7k & &t fF & #%
Fff). Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (fE#)eREf T & -+Efﬁﬂ) and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (B8 K Gt EHMISHREBRERE))
were appoint as non-PRC auditors and PRC auditors of the Company,
which was approved by the shareholders on the 2011 Annual General
Meeting. Further details about the change of auditors were set out in
the announcement dated 12 April 2012.

The Board has proposed to appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
LLP (fE®EE ket EBHAUSHREBAR)) (‘Deloitte CPA”) as the
auditors of the Company, and not appoint the PRC and non-PRC
auditors separately. An ordinary resolution will be proposed to the
Company’s shareholders at the AGM for appointing Deloitte CPA as
the auditors of the Company, and to hold office until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company. Deloitte CPA will
be the only auditor auditing the Company’s financial statements after
the appointment at the AGM in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. Further details about the change
of auditors and adoption of China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises were set out on the announcements dated 27 March 2013
and 28 March 2013.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
25 March 2013
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

B

innni

Alnl
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IEI
To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to safeguard the interests

of the shareholders and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 4 meeting of the Supervisory Committee
were held for reviewing the 2011 annual report, the report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2011 and the 2012 quarterly and interim
results, and setting the meeting rules for the Supervisory Committee
in accordance with the relevant requirements relating to A shares. The
attendance records of the supervisors (including attendance in person

or via telephone conference) are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) Rzt (E/E)
Ms. Wang Hong T &+

Ms. Yao Jie skt

Mr. Chen Zhong PRéE S A&

Ms. Cheng Xianghong Rmiaizt

Mr. Yang Baoqun HEETE
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings; inspection of resolutions made by the
Board, review of internal control system, strict and effective monitoring
of whether the policies and decisions made by the management of
the Company had confirmed with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Company’s Articles of Association, safeguarding the interest of
the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has also
reviewed the performance of the directors and senior management in their
daily operation activities by various means, and examined the Group’s
financial affairs and connected transactions. As a result of our work, the

Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2012 financial statements reflected a fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Group in material

aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the Company

and shareholders has been found.

4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the Reporting

Period.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

= A+
EFgHmE

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports of
the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory Committee

during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
25 March 2013
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 ESkeMEEEBN

B

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, aged 59, a senior economist, is the Chairman of
the Board and an executive director. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Wei
was the general manager of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company
Limited (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”). From 1994 to 2002, he was the general
manager of Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha (“Jingkelong Shang Sha”), the
predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Group Company
Limited (“Jingkelong Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company).
He was the managing director of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to
2004. Since November 2004, he has been the Chairman of the Board.
In December 2008, he was honoured with the title of “Outstanding
figure of Chinese commerce & service industry during the 30 years of
reform and opening-up (FBIEE£RBEXEFM=TEAFEHAY) by
the China General Chamber of Commerce and China Business Herald.
He was elected as a representative of the 13th Session of the People’s

Congress of Beijing.

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 52, is the General Manager of the Company and
an executive director. He worked in Jingkelong Shang Sha as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
He has been the managing director of the Company since November
2004. He is also a director of Chaopi Trading, an approximately 79.85%

directly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 40, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’'s degree and subsequently a master’s degree in private
international law from China University of Politics & Law of China. Ms.
Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong Shang Sha from
2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of the Bureau of Law
and the Secretary to the board of directors of Jingkelong Supermarket
from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004, she has been one of the
executive directors of the Company. She has been appointed as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy general manager since

29 December 2008.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B BRENSREEE[N

Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 53, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002 and
2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since
November 2004, he has been an executive director of the Company.
From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in the Company,
including the manager of the First Operation Division, the manager of
the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the manager of the
Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009 to 2011, he had
been the manager of the First Operation Division of Supermarkets of the

Company. Since March 2011, he has been the manager of the Operation

Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gu Hanlin, aged 60, is a non-executive director. From 2002 to 2004,
he was a chairman of the Board of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since May
2004 to October 2012, he has been the general manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary. Since November 2004, he has been a non-executive director

of the Company.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 60, is a non-executive director. From 2000 to
2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian Construction
Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-executive director
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, he has been a non-

executive director of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 56, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. He has also been
an independent non-executive director of China Haisum Engineering Co.
Ltd. (FFEI/EH TR AR AF]) since April 2009, which is listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since 10 June 2010, he has been

an independent non-executive director.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFRLSATEBEHN

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 52, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
associate professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing in
the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of Economics
and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been an independent

non-executive director.

Mr. Choi Onward, aged 42, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Choi currently
serves as the acting chief financial officer of NetEase.com, Inc. (NASDAQ:
NTES) and an independent non-executive director of China ITS (Holdings)
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (SEHK: 1900). Mr. Choi is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the CPA Australia, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a registered practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong.
Mr. Choi holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi has been an independent

non-executive director since June 2010.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 41, is the chairman of the Company’s supervisory
committee. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has been
appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of Chaoyang Auxiliary
and the Company, the deputy manager of the First Operation Division and
the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Center
coordination team of the Company. Since October 2008, she has been
the chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since June 2010, she

has been the chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 60, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B BRENSREEE[N

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 49, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is currently a
professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and Computer Science,
the Head of Department of Computer Science and Technology and the
Head of the Advanced Financial Information Research Centre at Peking
University. Since June 2002 to July 2010, he had been a professor and the
Head of the School of Software and Microelectronics, Peking University.
Since January 2005, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 41, is a supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Cheng obtained her bachelor's degree and master’s degree in
management from Renmin University of China. She is a qualified
accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax agent. She had
previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li accounting firm. She has been the
deputy general manager and financial controller of Beijing Zhongguancun
City Construction Company since December 2003. Since January 2005,

she has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 42, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Wang is
a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen Foods Company
Limited for about nine years and was appointed as the assistant to
general manager before joining the Company. Since September 2003 to
March 2011, she had been appointed as the deputy officer of the Office
of Managers, the purchase manager of the In-house Brand Division of
Purchase Center and the manager of the Marketing Department of the
Company. Since March 2011, she has been the deputy manager and the
manager of the Human Resources Department. Since June 2010, she

has been elected as a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 50, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
has been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department of
the Company. From July 2009 to March 2012, she has been the officer
of the Manager Office of the Company. Since April 2012, she has been
the vice-chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since November

2009, she has been a staff— appointed supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFRLSATEBEHN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Jingsheng, aged 58. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Gao was the
assistant general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha. From 1999 to
2002, he was the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary.
From 2002 to 2004, he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong
Supermarket. He has been the assistant general manager of the Company

since November 2004.

Mr. Zhao Weili, aged 60. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Zhao was the assistant
general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha. From 1999 to 2002, he was
the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary. From 2002 to 2004,
he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket. He
has been the assistant general manager of the Company since November

2004.

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 49. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail
outlets of the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was
the manager and the assistant to the manager of the Operation Division
of Hypermarkets of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 34, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with a
bachelor’s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master degree
of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Li is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li served as an auditor
in Deloitte Beijing office from December 2004 to July 2007. He served
as a senior auditor in the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia
from August 2007 to September 2010 and served in Sinolink securities
as a project manager from September 2010 to March 2011. He also
serves as an independent director in Beijing Origin Water Company (a
company listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Li joined the Company

on 18 March 2011.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EELSATEBEHN

Mr. Luan Jie, aged 31, is the board secretary of the Company. He
graduated from law school of Beijing University of Chemical Technology
with a bachelor of law degree. Mr. Luan served as an legal clerk in Chaopi
Auxilary Company from 2004 to 2007, he served as an legal practitioner
in Beijing Jingdu law firm in 2007-2008. Since 2008, he served as deputy
manager and manager in the Company’s securities and legal department.

He was appointed as board secretary from February 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR A GRS

Deloitte.
=)

To the Members of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 175,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR CITR

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR A GRS

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

G825

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—F—=F —F——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T ARET T
REVENUE WA 7 9,183,922 8,632,531
Cost of sales SHERA 8 (7,822,758) (7,335,461)
Gross profit EF 1,361,164 1,297,070
Other income and gains H U A R U sk 7 679,172 600,580
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SHAK AR (1,328,500) (1,153,666)
Administrative expenses THAX (265,792) (212,687)
Other expenses A (57,640) (53,039)
Finance costs BhE KR 9 (158,776) (125,290)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R %% A A 8 229,628 352,968
Income tax expense FrfS & X 12 (57,824) (79,957)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEERE 171,804 273,011
Profit for the year attributable to: ifﬁ %IJ?FEEIE% Q
Owners of the parent RNAIFIA A 105,104 210,160
Non-controlling interests ;lH R 66,700 62,851
171,804 273,011
EARNINGS PER SHARE TR A F
- basic (RMB yuan per share) —ERNARBTEHR) 14 0.25 0.51
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

affeEkaX

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E—C—F —ET——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBTR AREFIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFHE 171,804 273,011
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, Hih 2 -
NET OF INCOME TAX FRETISBI 2T
Available-for-sale investments: Al E R ARIE
Changes in fair value NAEEEL 2,018 (539)
Income tax effect FriSfiss & (505) 135
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERNEMEEEE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BRBLHE R 20 1,513 (404)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEAZEKR=HATE
FOR THE YEAR 173,317 272,607
Total comprehensive income for FEAZTEKREHEE
the year attributable to: AER :
Owners of the parent S REIFIA A 106,617 209,756
Non-controlling interests SRR R 66,700 62,851
173,317 272,607
20124F 3 77
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B HF IR

At 31 December 2012 R=—F——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—F—=F —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETR AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 15 1,897,049 1,828,542
Investment properties B Y 16 56,083 33,001
Prepaid lease payments T ETE R 17 227,987 233,511
Goodwill B2 18 86,674 86,674
Intangible assets mRAE 19 19,612 11,467
Available-for-sale investments A HERARE 20 8,332 6,314
Deferred tax assets FEEFR I E B 32 16,543 18,720
Other long term lease prepayments HEt REABEEENR 21 50,560 55,441
Rental deposits HERES 13,781 7,945
Other long term asset HeRH&EE 630 =
2,377,251 2,281,615
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,535,946 1,416,806
Trade receivables JFEULBR =X 23 1,399,046 1,358,876
Prepayments, deposits and R EZERk
other receivables H b U R 24 711,998 653,198
Short-term investment HHEE 25 25,000 =
Pledged deposits R RiES 26 4,158 36,351
Cash and cash equivalents RekBH2EED 26 461,110 580,655
4,137,258 4,045,886
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables ERNBRERREE 27 1,075,588 1,323,527
Debentures &% 29 199,650 299,200
Tax payable FESAIE 4,546 13,578
Other payables and accruals HEMER R RERIEER 28 666,689 659,766
Interest-bearing bank loans M EIRITER 30 2,337,707 1,911,519
Deferred income-current portion FEIEW A — AHR 5 31 3,669 2,754
4,287,849 4,210,344
Net current liabilities B A EFE (150,591) (164,458)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERADEMS
LIABILITIES 2,226,660 2,117,157

8 i ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A FI AR

At 31 December 2012 R=—F——F+=H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-C—fF —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITER 30 200,000 200,000
Deferred income PFEIELA 31 1,866 2,133
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBRE 32 11,061 11,474
Other liabilities HEwafE 13,685 11,433
226,612 225,040
Net assets FEE 2,000,048 1,892,117
Capital and Reserves A& K &
Issued capital BEITIRA 33 412,220 412,220
Reserves ] 34 1,190,602 1,125,207
Proposed final dividend FORARHII S 13 41,222 82,444
Equity attributable to owners HEAZATME AR
of the parent 1,644,044 1,619,871
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE R 356,004 272,246
Total equity B 2,000,048 1,892,117

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 175 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2013

and are signed on its behalf by:

Wei Tingzhan
HEE
Director

EF

AHUEREFBEITSECEHEE SR
20133 A25 AL M - WH TIESERKE

=

BE

Li Chunyan
ZTEHK

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A M
=Nvas

BB E

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SEREAAFEA
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation ~ Statutory  Proposed Non-
Share reserve  surplus final controlling
Issued  premium Capital  TIftHE  reserve  dividend  Retained interests Total
capital  account  reserve BARE  EEEH #E  profits Total  FERK equity
BRARA ROEER EARE EMEE  MEE  RHRE  REME NG Bi Ena
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
WE  ARETr ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR
(note 34(c))
(Hiz340)
At 1 January 2011 R=F——%-f-A 412,220 605,171 1,652 4877 104,769 82444 281426 14925069 212199 1,704,758
Profit for the year FEHE = = = = = - 210160 210,160 62,851 273,011
Other comprehensive income for  FEEth2E Mz
the year:
Changes in fair value of MRNERARE
avallole-for-sale investments, A% EEEE)
net of tax Rit#E - - - (404) - - - (404) - (404)
Total comprehensive income~ FE2EME
for the year &8 - - - (404) - - 210160 209,756 62,851 272,607
2010 dividend declared ER-E-TERRE 13 - - - - - (B4 - (8244 - (82444
Disposal of interest to a REER
non-controling equity holder ~ FEEREREAA - - - - - - = = 2400 2400
Capital injection from FERERRBA
non-controling equity holders ~—~ BAVEA - - - - - - - - B89 25879
Dividends paid to BiERER
non-controling equity holders %8 A& - - - - - - - - (31,083 (31,089
Proposed final 2011 dividend SRS ——FEAHHRE 13 - - - - - R4 B4 - - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ BEkEEH, - - - - 9,200 - (920 = = =
At 31 December 2011 R=E—&+-A=1-A 442220 605,171* 1,652* 4473 113,969 82,444 399942 1,619,871 212,246 1,892,117
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-—%-A-H 42220 605171* 1,652* 4473 113,969 82444 399,942 1,619,871 212,246 1,892,117
Proft forthe year EEFIE - - - - - - 105004 105104 66700 171,804
Other comprehensive income for - FEE th2E Mz
the year:
Changes in fair value of A ERARE
avallable-for-sale investments, A% BEZE
net of tax BisE - - - 1,513 - - - 1,513 - 1,513
Total comprehensive income ~~ FE2EME
for the year &8 - - - 1,513 - - 105104 106,617 66,700 173,317
2011 divicend declared SR-F-—4ERE 13 - - - - - (82444) - (82444) - (82,444
Disposal of interest to a RERR
non-controling equity holder ~~ FHEERERREA - - - - - - - - 9,100 9,100
Capital injection from FERERREA
non-controling equity holders ~—~ EAVEA - - - - - - - - 5B34d48 58448
Dividends paid to BIiERER
non-controling equity holders ~ HAEABRE - - - - - - - - (50490)  (50,490)
Proposed final 2012 dividend ~~ EE-F——%FEXERE 13 - - - - - M2 (01,22 - - -
Transfer from retained profits B MEEH, - - - - 7,344 - (134) - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1-A 412,220 605171* 1,652* 5986 121,313 41,222 456,480° 1,644,044 356,004 2,000,048

* These reserve accounts as at 31 December 2012 comprised the consolidated
reserves of RMB1,190,602,000 (31 December 2011: RMB1,125,207,000) in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

s
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR RER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARET T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETHELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BrEE AT 229,628 352,968
Adjustments for: FLAT S IE T AR -
Finance costs AEKAR 9 158,776 125,290
Fair value adjustment of FARBRAREBEHARE
contingent consideration - (44)
Effect of foreign exchange HNIEBE 3= A B 2 20 R R
rate charge, net 415 (41)
Interest and investment income FERFEWA 7 (14,401) (16,287)
Amortisation of intangible assets I E E R 8 2,928 2,934
Recognition of prepaid lease payments ERBETEN K 8 5,524 6,587
Losses on disposal of items of property,  BREWZE - ME&&E
plant and equipment, net [E5E 55 8 3,046 1,232
Depreciation e 8 188,723 173,685
Impairment of trade and other JE LA AR R e EL At FE LSRR (B
receivables, net 8 1,703 -
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB REERE
equipment 8 - 888
Recognition of deferred income from TR B BT EREY
government grants EEW ATER 31(a) (267) (267)
Operating cash flows before EEERNFFRLE RSN
movements in working capital 576,075 646,945
Increase in inventories FEEm (119,140) (419,450)
Increase in trade receivables JE WS BR R A0 (42,061) (352,512)
Increase in prepayments, deposits, TENER -« B - BRI
other receivables and rental deposit RAEERESIE M (64,448) (124,276)
Increase in other long term asset HuREIEEEN (630) -
Decrease in other long term Hib KA EBEMANFR D
lease prepayments 4,881 2,716
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEERFK R ZER OB )N
bills payables (247,939) 258,015
Increase in other payables and accruals — E-fth (< 7108 K fE 5118 B 1 41 1,090 97,386
Increase in other liabilities H A B FEIE N 2,252 1,358
Increase in deferred income PRIEUT AIE AN 915 1,538
Cash generated from operations KEELENRS 110,995 111,720
Interest paid BEAIFE (158,278) (123,141)
PRC corporate income tax paid BT BB EMRET (65,597) (86,599)
Net cash flows used in AR EEHR e R EH5E
operating activities (112,880) (98,020)
201268 4, 81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Bt RTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-=F =%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETR AREFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from interest and H B AR E WA FT15 5RI8
investment income 14,401 16,287
Purchase of items of property, BEME  BEMKE
plant and equipment (278,091) (198,591)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (11,073) (3,100)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEYHE  BE RKEMERE
property, plant and equipment 1,229 16,771
Placement of pledged time deposits EHRERFREE (58,323) (136,712)
Withdrawal of pledged time deposits I E AR 90,516 122,327
Purchase of financial products EESRER (544,400) (1,890,000)
Withdrawal of financial products & RUE SRR EL 519,400 1,890,000
Decrease in loan receivables W E FR - 115,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE— KM B A A 35 - (76,462)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BRI A EEHIR SRS F58 (266,341) (139,480)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHELENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of debentures BITEFFISRIE 200,000 300,000
Payment of bank charges of debentures S {EHZETTIRITER (700) (1,200)
Repayment of debentures BEESHNE (300,000) (500,000)
New bank loans FIBIRITE R 4,106,068 1,837,748
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (3,679,880) (1,306,229)
Cash contributions from non-controlling R ERFEARSHE
equity holders 58,448 25,879
Dividends paid (including non-controlling — BfALE
equity holders) (BIEFFERERFEA) (132,945) (115,016)
Disposal of interest to a non-controlling EREER TIFERERIFEEA
equity holder 9,100 2,400
Net cash flows from financing activities BMEESELENESRE F58 260,091 243,582
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH e RESEEYCRD),
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS I HNFE R (119,130) 6,082
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERREEEY
beginning of year 580,655 574,532
Effect of foreign exchange HNIETE R B E) R 2 F K
rate changes, net (415) 41
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASKRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 461,110 580,655
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BERBSEEYHREIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHER 26 461,110 580,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”).

The registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale
distribution of daily consumer products in the region covering Beijing
city and certain parts of its periphery. Details of the principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the controlling shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang

Auxiliary”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI aR MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

84
i gt

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for certain equity investments, which
have been measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out in note 4. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB150,591,000 (31 December 2011: RMB164,458,000). Based
on the Group’s history of obtaining financing, available banking
facilities, operating performance, working capital forecast and
financial obligations in the next twelve months, the directors consider
that there are sufficient financial resources available to the Group to
meet its liabilities as when fall due and to carry on its business in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Asset; and
Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Transfers of

Financial Assets

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

Jﬂ){& ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial

Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS
7 Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets in the current year. The
amendments increase the disclosure requirements for transactions
involving the transfer of financial assets in order to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when financial assets are

transferred.

The Group has arrangements with the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“‘HSBC”) to obtain a bank loan from
HSBC by transferring the Group’s contractual rights to receive cash
flows from certain trade receivables. The arrangements are made
through factoring those receivables to HSBC on a full recourse
basis. Specifically, if the trade receivables are not paid at maturity,
HSBC has the right to request the Group to repay the outstanding
loan balance. The Group continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the receivables and has recognised the cash received
on the transfer as secured bank loans (see note 30). The relevant
disclosures have been made regarding the transfer of these trade
receivables on application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 (see note
23a). In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, the Group has not provided comparative

information for the disclosures required by the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities'
Fair Value Measurement'

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and JointVentures’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilties'

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities: Transition Guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

and HKFRS 7 Transttion Disclosures?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive

Income®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities*

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities*
HK(IFRIC) Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Surface Ming'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for those as stated below, the adoption of these new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation is not expected
to have material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (as issued in November 2009) introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
(as revised in November 2010) add requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to
the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Currently, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or

loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
31 December 2015 and that the application of the new standard
may not have any material effect in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities based on an analysis of the financial

instruments of the Group as at 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards that are relevant to the

Group are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in

HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the

current standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on

the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that

all of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards together with the
amendments will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ending 31 December 2013 and
the application of these five standards will not have any material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group, but it will

result in more extensive disclosures.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012 include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the
amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the

amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as property,
plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant

and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions
to holders of an equity instrument and transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12

Income Taxes.

The directors anticipate that the annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013
and that the application of the amendments will not have a material

effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures

- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous

realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information
about rights of offset and related arrangements for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or

similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the amendments
to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the amendments to HKFRS 7 and
the amendments to HKAS 32 will be adopted in the Group’s
financial statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014 respectively and that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities in the future.
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 (as issued in June 2011) establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about
fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13
are more extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair
value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only under
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by

HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors
anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013
and that the application of the new standard may not have any
material effect in respect of the Group’s assets measured at fair value
based on an analysis of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, but it will result in more extensive

disclosures in the consolidated financial statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’
is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a
single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis
— the amendments do not change the option to present items of

other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The directors anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS1 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013
and the presentation of items of other comprehensive income will
be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied in future

accounting periods.

R RIETT NS B MR EER ()

BEREHEAE IR HMEEKAEE
HERT 2

ARG ERE 1R 27N A2 EKRAER ]
MEFTAREERER MR S AF M
B REFEGHERNERNERT A [2
ElERIEEAMEaREMEEEER ]
iR QBB RMERR] - BEGE
RIS SRS AT AR B LA — SRR KM DB
BEEHRR2I B R EM2EBARNEE
& o A - BAGHEFIRNETARE
Ht2HBRARBAS D BME  @EED
SEFOBEEREMERB - ROVERFE
fRprls - HRAEHDBERSMIEAR - £
e 2 EWAIR B MAEHRARARZEET N
DEC BRI AL BB REHATHSRHEZE
FIE b2 W ATH B R A -

BFREHEAEURNEIATIN T ——F
tA-HARZRABNFEERRER - BE
AIARAREGFHEERR  Eth2miA
HEMEITAEEEHAEES -

20128 4 93
IRRRESLEERBERAA uus’i P



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those

used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately

from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners

of the Company.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating polices the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI aR MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition

date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19

Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in accordance with

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with

that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at the fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified

in another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about

facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with

the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that

is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of merchandise and produce is recognised
when goods are delivered and all the following conditions are

satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under
the Group’s customer loyalty programme, are accounted for as
multiple element revenue transactions and the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods
sold and the award credits granted. The consideration allocated
to the award credits is measured by reference to their fair value.
Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the
initial sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations

have been fulfilled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
equity holders/shareholders’ right to receive payment has been

established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
as described below are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs and are
depreciated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
property over their estimated useful lives between 20 and 25 years,

after taking into account their estimated residual values.

Owner-occupied property is transferred to investment property
when there is a change in use evidenced by the end of owner

occupation.

Investment properties shall be derecognised on disposal or when
the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated income statement in

the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets of the Group represent the acquisition costs of
distribution network and software less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortized over the useful economic life on
the straight-line basis of 5 to 10 years and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The estimated useful life and the amortization method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of

goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of

goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense

on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over

the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,

including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, the obligations of the Group under
which are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan. Contributions to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non— current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 05 R I et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

108‘

gt

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a); and

(vi) aperson identified in (a)()) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel

of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

4.

HQ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in

the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available- for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL (including short-term investment) represent

financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned

on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS and are
traded in an active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect

of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

4.

H{

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, and observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or an other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in available- for-sale

investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group’s accounting policy for financial liabilities are set out

as below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, debentures,
other payables and interest-bearing bank loans) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY At

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that from an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also

recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the accumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI MT Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the consolidated statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,

they are recognised as a liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5.

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgment.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment has
been made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify

as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR AR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—AIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of goodwill was RMB86,674,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB86,674,000), and no impairment loss was recognised. Details

of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses at 31 December 2012 was RMB16,543,000 (31 December
2011: RMB18,720,000). Further details are contained in note 32

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. EASHHEIRMEFTE)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The
identification of doubtful debts requires management’s judgment.
Where the actual outcome is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and the expenses/write-back of the doubtful debts in the period in

which such estimate has been changed.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties

The Group has estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties at 5 to 35 years, after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, as set out in the
significant accounting policies above. Depreciation of items of
property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives. The carrying amounts of items
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties as at
31 December 2012 were RMB1,897,049,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB1,828,542,000) and RMB56,083,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB33,001,000), respectively. Further details are given in notes 15

and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

6.

mg

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and services and has three reportable

operating segments as follows:

(@) the retailing segment engages in the distribution of live and
fresh produce, dry products, beverages, processed food and
daily necessities through the department stores, hypermarkets,
supermarkets and/or convenience stores of the Group (the

“Retail Outlets”);

(b) the wholesaling segment engages in the wholesale supply of
daily consumer products to consumers, including the Retail

Outlets, other retail operators, and trading companies; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the production of
plastic packing materials, and the installation and maintenance

of commercial equipment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax in the consolidated

financial statements.

All assets and liabilities are included in the segment information, no

assets nor liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are conducted based on mutually

agreed terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 05 R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax expenses have been allocated among the segments as
additional information regularly provided to the management but not
included in the measure of segment result. However, the relevant

tax payables have been allocated into the segment liabilities.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group’s
revenue is derived from customers based in Mainland China, and

all of its assets are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s revenue from
one (2011: one) customer amounted to RMB1,041,856,000 (2011:
RMB978,737,000), which is derived from the wholesaling segment.
Except for this one customer, the Group has not had any single
external customer, the sales to whom amounted to 10%, or more
of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011.

The following tables present revenue, profit and asset, liability and
expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for the

years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—AIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERHE)
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——_H+-A=+—HLFE
Retailing Wholesaling Others Total
zE #e 3 Hith et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR¥BTRT AR%®Tx
Segment revenue ik 1 ON
Sales to external customers HETINRER 4,561,623 4,598,477 23,822 9,183,922
Intersegment sales HEEEE - 536,489 14,640 551,129
4,561,623 5,134,966 38,462 9,735,051
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEEEHEHE (551,129)
Consolidated revenue KA GN 9,183,922
Segment results PEEE 21,166 208,698 (236) 229,628
Profit before tax BRELRIAE 229,628
Segment assets SHEE 3,585,957 3,366,891 12,922 6,965,770
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment 2 ER R R A 3
receivables (451,261)
Total assets BEE 6,514,509
Segment liabilities ABa% 2,492,965 2,466,266 6,491 4,965,722
Reconciliation: Fi-i
Elimination of intersegment payables %2 E ML (451,261)
Total liabilities Baf 4,514,461
Other segment information HtrpHER
Capital expenditure* BARHY 270,398 25,192 70 295,660
Loss on disposal of REVX  BEK
Property, plant and equipment REBR 3,035 11 - 3,046
Depreciation: E
property, plant and equipment Mx - BEREE 164,337 22,392 26 186,755
Investment properties KEM*E 1,968 - - 1,968
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 1,582 1,346 - 2,928
Recognition of prepaid BR L AERTR
land lease payments 5,524 - - 5,524
Impairment losses on trade and TR FE ML % L At FE MR
other receivables recognised, net REBXFE 1,703 - - 1,703
Finance cost BRERA 55,362 103,414 - 158,776
Interest income FEBA (9,770) (3,820) 5) (13,505)
Income tax expense FrigM S 4,312 52,854 658 57,824
Foreign exchange losses SNERE H 238 415 - - 415

*

equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease payments.

1?4-'3@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEXALUEE R eSS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Year ended 31 December 2011

PEER ()
HE-_E——F+-_A=+—BItEE

Retailing Wholesaling Others Total
e s Het 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Segment revenue DEBA
Sales to external customers HETIAEP 4,332,701 4,280,413 19,417 8,632,531
Intersegment sales HEEHE - 568,491 9,949 578,440
4,332,701 4,848,904 29,366 9,210,971
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment sales D ESHE S (678,440)
Consolidated revenue BHHBA 8,632,531
Segment results AHEE 145,021 207,820 127 352,968
Profit before tax BREL AIA 352,968
Segment assets DHEE 3,502,917 3,122,831 8,299 6,634,047
Reconciliation: e -
Elimination of intersegment 2 EBE R 8
receivables (306,546)
Total assets BEE 6,327,501
Segment liabilities AHaRE 2,486,334 2,252,406 3,190 4,741,930
Reconciliation: Ei
Elimination of intersegment payables 2 EPFE (T T 3 (306,546)
Total liabilities BaE 4,435,384
Other segment information Hit &R :
Capital expenditure* AR 173,828 13,152 43 187,024
Loss on disposal of BREVE  HER
property, plant and equipment BEEPS 1,110 121 1 1,232
Depreciation: nE:
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 144,028 27,101 1,089 172,218
Investment properties BEME 1,467 = = 1,467
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EERH 1,416 1,518 - 2,934
Recognition of prepaid lease BERRERNR
payments 4,889 - 1,698 6,587
Impairment losses on property, R - BERK
plant and equipment recognised REEX 888 - - 888
Finance costs BT AKR 52,580 72,710 - 125,290
Interest income FEWA (9,465) (3,495) (593) (13,553)
Income tax expense PR 26,341 53,004 522 79,957
Foreign exchange gains NEFE H 238 (41) = = (41)

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease payments.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

deduction of relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade

discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ EfbU AR W s

WA - HEEEEMNERFE - MREBH
A RORRE RS ZHTH o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI aR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HAIFE

WA~ B AR RS DT T

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Revenue KA
Direct sale of BEEHEED
merchandise and produce: KEm
Retailing =& 4,519,440 4,294,923
Wholesaling* L2 4,598,477 4,280,413
9,117,917 8,575,336
Commissions from HEEEERAS
concessionaire sales 42,183 37,778
Others EAh 23,822 19,417
Total revenue FEVON 9,183,922 8,632,531

*

Included in the amounts are sales to franchisees amounting to

RMB12,144,000 (2011: RMB15,182,000).

HEEREHNBEEHFONEEBEARE
12,144,000c( = T — — F: AR ¥

15,182,0007T) ©

2012 2011
—E-CF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Other income and gains H g A F Uz
Income from suppliers TR B e R B A 484,642 402,123
Gross rental income e WA LR 115,312 106,381
Interest and investment income ASYNES =T PN 14,401 16,287
Compensation for settlement of BTIRESE
employees . 18,880 33,151
Government grants’ RS Fea B 9,904 10,730
Compensation for early termination 2 Bil & R FH 47 B (8 2%
of rental agreement 6,334 -
Net compensation on FEBYMEMEFE
demolished properties 1,800 2,070
Franchise fee IR 1,965 3,658
Others HAh 25,934 26,180
Total other income and gains E bl A RS2 st 679,172 600,580
s Various local government grants have been granted to reward the SR BRBBERTARE  LEHA

Group for its contributions to the local economy and employing the

surplus rural labor. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

attaching to these grants.

1 ,26.':’@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APt B AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

8. KRBIAIFIE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ R (GEA) AT S IEE - NEBKREA
(crediting): FHE
2012 2011
—B-—=fF —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR®T T ARETIT
Cost of inventories sold EHEERR 7,822,758 7,335,461
Depreciation: e
Property, plant and equipment WZE -~ BB REE 15 186,755 172,218
Investment properties B 16 1,968 1,467
188,723 173,685
Amortisation of intangible assets & E S 19 2,928 2,934
Recognition of prepaid lease THETE AR
payments 17 5,524 6,587
Minimum lease payments under YEEBRYH =ERE
operating leases on properties 203,733 177,724
Losses on disposal of items of HEME - BEK
property, plant and equipment, net  REEEFE5E 3,046 1,232

Impairment of trade and

TR LT B R 2 LA P U OB (B

other receivables, net 1,703 -
Impairment of property, Y BE KR ERE
plant and equipment - 888
Gross rental income from IREREMFEMNHES A
investment properties 14,173 10,904
Less: DA
Direct operating expense FEANEEHSWAR
incurred for investment KB B
properties that generated BB
rental income during the year (1,968) (1,467)
Net rental income from WE Y2 S WA FEE
investment properties 12,205 9,437
Auditors’ remuneration [t Gl 1,583 1,959
Staff costs: BIRA :
Directors’ emoluments EEME 8,855 7,791
Other staff costs: HAth 8 TR -
Wages, salaries and social IE& - HekateRERR
security costs 505,363 442,119
Retirement benefit contributions RINER AR 54,485 44,961
559,848 487,080
568,703 494,871
Foreign exchange differences HNFEFE H, = 58 415 (41)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERA
2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Interest on bank loans and bank AFRNEEZEEBRITERR
overdraft wholly repayable #R1TE X RIBF B
within five years 142,365 107,930
Interest on debentures wholly AFRNELIBEZESFE
repayable within five years 17,591 18,371
159,956 126,301
Less: Interest capitalised o BAMEF S (1,180) (1,011)
158,776 125,290
The weighted average capitalisation rate on bank loans generally RITERNNEFHERNME-—RAETSE
is 5.57% (2011: 5.46%) per annum. 557% (ZF——%F : 5.46%) °
10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 10. EARER
The Group’s contributions to pension costs amounted to AEBRBEZE T —FRE-_ZT—F+=
approximately RMB54,616,000 and RMB45,081,000 for the years A=Z+—BUHEFENRREFERD N A
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively. A E 54,616,000 & A K #45,081,000
ﬁ: o
11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTSAND 11. EE - EEFMRAENBRSHEEN
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES M
Details of the remuneration of directors and supervisors for the year, BE BB ATE S AR A R BB QR R
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities F1615  FRESRESME 2B REN
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of TS @
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APt B AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND

"N ES EEFWRIACERSHESN

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) [ A=,
Directors Supervisors
Ex
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B-=F | T F| =B-=F| =T %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT | ARETT| ARETR| ARETT
Fees HE 239 239 70 70
Other emoluments: ﬁ@@ﬁ% 3
Salaries, allowances and %ﬁ% > @ﬂﬁ&ﬁ‘rﬁz
benefits in kind EYH e 2,248 2,327 809 758
Performance related bonuses* MR 6,237 5,105 752 501
Retirement benefit contributions R TE A 3K 131 120 99 90
8,616 7,652 1,660 1,349
Total HaET 8,855 7,791 1,730 1,419

Certain executive directors and supervisors of the Company are entitled

to bonus payments which are determined based on the Company’s

profit for the last year.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

Y EBATARARTERREREREIREAR
AR EFFANBAEERENES -

(@) BAFHTES
FAXNTEIFATESTNES N

the year were as follows: s ¢
2012 2011
=2—=F N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Mr. Chen Liping PR A 42 42
Mr. Wang Liping F AR A4 42 42
Mr. Onward Choi BRERE 155 155
Total #Et 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during both years.

MEFENGEN TBIIFERTESNE

bFr B
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(b) BITEERFHUTES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EXALUELE eSS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—AIFE

M. ES EEFWRIACKRSHEEN
L EAC )

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Performance benefit
B 1:1 related  contributions Total
Fees RHEAM bonuses RIKEA  remuneration
e BEMFE BEyES H®X [ Rt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
2012 —E-CF
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Wei Tingzhan FfEEEE - 749 2,483 33 3,265
Mr. Li Jianwen # TELE - 749 2,483 33 3,265
Ms. Li Chunyan FERIL - 449 780 33 1,262
Mr. Liu Yuejin s e - 301 491 32 824
Total wast - 2,248 6,237 131 8,616
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind Performance benefit
& 28 related  contributions Total
Fees KA bonuses ERAEF]  remuneration
ik EYHE= EMRe 3R Mems
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®ETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
2011 —=——F
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Wei Tingzhan HEELE - 785 2,133 30 2,948
Mr. Li Jianwen # BRENEES - 785 2,133 30 2,948
Ms. Li Chunyan TERUL - 472 780 30 1,282
Mr. Liu Yuejin 2RE A - 285 59 30 374
Total #at - 2,327 5,105 120 7,552

& Mr. Li Jianwen is also the chief executive of the Group and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered

by him as the chief executive.
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEXALUEE R eSS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

"N ES EEFWRIAUKRSHESEN

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) [ A€ )
(c) Supervisors (c) E=
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Performance benefit
E = 3:1 related  contributions Total
Fees REM bonuses RIKEA  remuneration
He BYRIE ENRE s [k
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR AREFR
2012 —E—C—F
Ms. Yao Jie Pk L+ - 198 112 33 343
Mr. Chen Zhong PREES A 35 - - - 35
Ms. Cheng Xianghong  f2RI4I &+ 35 - - - 35
Ms. Liu Wenyu B>cmz 4 - 380 510 33 923
Ms. Wang Hong FH 24 - 231 130 33 394
Mr. Yang Baoqun HEREE - - - - -
Total Bt 70 809 752 99 1,730
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind Performance benefit
e 2B related  contributions Total
Fees KE A bonuses BIREH  remuneration
e EMFI= ENRS "3 Metas
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREF T AREF T AREF T
2011 ==
Ms. Yao Jie kgt + - 196 101 30 327
Mr. Chen Zhong PREE A 35 - - - 35
Ms. Cheng Xianghong  f2RI4I &+ 35 - - - 35
Ms. Liu Wenyu B3 H A+ - 350 303 30 683
Ms. Wang Hong FiT#z+ - 212 97 30 339
Mr. Yang Baoqun »EREAE - - = = =
Total 45T 70 758 501 90 1,419

There was no arrangement under which a director or a

supervisor waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(d) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2011: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out

in note (b) above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining

M. ES EEFMRIACKRSHESEN
[ EAC )

d) EUEESHFESNMS

AEEARUESHFEEREML(ZE——
FML)ES EHFMFBEHR LAME
(o) E=fM(=F——F : =) K=HF

three (2011: three) non-director, highest paid employees for EE5EENFMFIBOT :
the year are as follows:
2012 2011
—E—= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and e FEMREMEDH =
benefits in kind 3,176 3,710
Performance related bonuses ERNEES 8,456 6,183
Retirement benefit contributions R RIB A 3k 66 24
11,698 9,917

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,621,401
to RMB2,026,750)

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
(equivalent to RMB2,432,101
to RMB2,837,450)

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
(equivalent to RMB3,242,801
to RMB3,648,150)

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
(equivalent to RMB4,864,200
to RMB5,269,550)

2,000,001 £ £2,500,0007% 7T
(HERARK1,621,401 L2
AR#2026,7507T)

3,000,0017% 7L 3,500,000/ 7T
(HERAR2 432 101 L8
ARHED 837,4507T)

4,000,001 £ £4,500,0007% 7T
(HERARKS 242,801 LE
AR#3,648,1507T)

6,000,0017% 7L 26,500,000/ 7T
(HERNARKAL,864,200LE
ARHE5,269,5507T)

RRFFEEEENFTHERATEEED

EHEMT :

Number of employees
EEH

2012 2011
—g-=fF| -z -

- 1

- 1

2 —

1 1

3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TSR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. The Group is not liable for
income tax in Hong Kong as it does not have assessable income
currently arising in Hong Kong. Under the prevailing PRC income

tax law, the Group is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of

25% on their respective taxable income.

The income tax in the consolidated income statement of the Group

comprises the following:

12. FRIEHixH

AEERAREREERELIRNANEEK
BN A REM R A8 & P Y E B R R I A A
RS - AEE B Y ERNEERN
ERERTBA - A ERHATEFE
B KIBFBERTAGSHERE  BRARAK
SENCEMBHRERESAERTBAR
25% BB K 4k

AEBERHFEERTHAESHEENAT

2012 2011

=2—=F —T—5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Current income tax — PRC REAFRS L — B 56,565 82,842
Deferred income tax (note 32) RIEFTSHE (B3E32) 1,259 (2,885)
57,824 79,957

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the Group’s effective

rate, and a reconciliation of the statutory rate to the effective tax

rate, are as follows:

ERARRRANBIREER KA ENEEM
SREZASENEREEMEHREGFE
WEEMEN  WROEELEMEH XA
ERBEDRIFET :

)

\r

2012 2011
—E—CfF —=——%
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T Bk | AREFT Bkt
Profit before tax B 54 A1 A1) B 229,628 352,968
Income tax at the PRC statutory &7 BVAE TSR FE =R
income tax rate STEREE 57,407 25 88,242 25
Expenses not deductible for tax A 0% 52 H 1,872 0.8 1,400 0.4
Tax effect of tax losses not RERHIBEEEZ
recognised B TR 246 0.1 1,007 0.3
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FEFERFLUIA Z iRt 5/ & (1,452) (0.6) (2,703) (0.8)
Utilization of tax losses FI A LA R F & R FERR
previously not recognised AMEHEE 2 R 2 (249) (0.1) (7,989) (2.9)
Tax charge at the Group’s AEEBEBRREHIESH
effective rate 57,824 25.2 79,957 22.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FR SRR P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—AIFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KB
2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Dividends recognised as distributions ZN4FE 2 FERIR 330 2 57 )
during the year: —T——FRARE B8R
2011 final, paid - RMB0.20 AE%anm_?——E
per share (2011: 2010 final, BRI =T FRE
paid RMBO.20 per share) BB — SR AR 0.207T) 82,444 82,444
Proposed 2012 final - RMB0.10 Bk—T——FRERE -
(2011: 2011 final RMB0.20 ARK0A10TL(ZE—F : ZF——F
per share) REARE — BRARE0.207T) 41,222 82,444
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the proposed final WERE  BEREHZE_ZT——F+_A
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 is subject to the =+ —RIEFERBAREEFARTRER

approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners

i

i

of the parent is based on the following data:

FEERRBFERE L4 -

BRER

N E R A (S BAREIA T BURAT

EE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Earnings &
Earnings for the purpose of basic BRE %ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ‘@ﬂm@ﬂ
earnings per share (profit for the (FRBEBINE A AR R
year attributable to owners of BAEERF)
the parent) 105,104 210,160
2012 2011
—E-—F —=——%F
000 000
T TR
Number of ordinary shares for the BARERERBFFTE RN LRI
purpose of basic earnings
per share 412,220 412,220

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no potential

BT

ordinary shares outstanding during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥% - BERRE

Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT HENEEE HE HaRE BEEH EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AR®Trn ARETn ARETR AR¥Tr ARETn ARET#n
31 December 2012 ZE-CH+ZA=t-H
As at 1 January 2012: RZE——4-A-R:
Cost A 900,237 756,743 737,079 121,254 31,788 124,106 2,671,207
Accumulated depreciation 2EriE (165,101)  (213,447)  (353,427) (93,501) (17,189) - (842,665)
Net carrying amount REFE 735,136 543,206 383,652 27,753 14,599 124,106 1,828,542
Asat 1 January 2012, netof ~ W=ZE——%—-A-H
accumulated depreciation MR 25HTE 735,136 543,296 383,652 27,753 14,599 124,106 1,828,542
Additions i 61,655 22,165 26,022 10,288 7,837 156,620 284,587
Disposals RE - - (3,393) (346) (536) - (4,275)
Depreciation ik (29,285) (74,854) (61,307) (15,734) (5,575) - (186,755)
Transfers a2 31,040 57,428 28,664 202 - (117,334) -
Transfer to investment EEREE
properties (25,050) - - - - - (25,050)
As at 31 December 2012, net  RW=F——FF=7
of accumulated depreciation =T—ANGRENE| 773,49 548,035 373,638 22,163 16,325 163,392 1,897,049
As at 31 December 2012; it g
==
Cost A 964,272 836,336 762,218 120,893 37,194 163,392 2,884,305
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (190,776) (288,301) (388,580) (98,730) (20,869) - (987,256)
Net carrying amount REFE 773,496 548,035 373,638 22,163 16,325 163,392 1,897,049
201243 135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Nt

15. W%~ BERRE(E)

136

Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HEnEies hE HA%E e FRIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2011 —E——&+-A=1-A
As at 1 January 2011: R=Z——F-fA-R:
Cost R 911,011 631,481 620,172 153,114 50,208 186,499 2,552,485
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (140,388) (155,838) (310,466) (100,718) (23,787 - (781,197)
Net carrying amount REFE 770,623 475,643 309,706 52,396 26,421 186,499 1,821,288
As at 1 January 2011, netof ~ R=E——F—F—A
accumulated depreciation MR 25HE 770,623 475,643 309,706 52,396 26,421 186,499 1,821,288
Additions byl 2,008 32,549 54,073 8,518 13,303 73,227 183,678
Acquisition of a subsidiary YE—RINBAR
(note 35) (PizEss) 41,827 - - - - - 41,827
Disposals KE - (1,339) 573 (15,792) (1,445) - (18,008)
Impairment WA - (889) - - - - (888)
Depreciation il (29,457 (59,390) (56,795) (15,175) (11,401) - (172,218)
Transfers Ez (1,310) 98,261 34,818 3,851 - (135,620) -
Transfer to investment EfanE
properties (27,142) - - - - - (27,142)
Reclassification EpLt (21,413) (1,540) 41,217 (6,045) (12,279) - -
As at 31 December 2011, net  RZE——F+=4
of acoumulated depreciation =+ —BIIBRZFHTE 735,136 543,296 383,652 27,753 14,599 124,106 1,828,542
As at 31 December 2011: RZE——5FZA
=+-R:
Cost AR 900,237 756,743 737,079 121,254 31,788 124,106 671,207
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (165,101) (213,447) (353,427) (93,501) (17,189) - (842,665)
Net carrying amount EmEE 735,136 543,296 383,652 27,753 14,599 124,106 1,828,542
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Buildings 20 to 35 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and estimated useful lives
Machinery 5 to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years
All the Group’s buildings are located in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB89.2 million (31 December 2011:
RMB138.4 million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans

granted to the Group (note 30).

As at 31 December 2012, except for a property with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB6.0 million located in Shijiazhuang
(31 December 2011: RMB6.3 million) and properties under
construction, the Group has obtained ownership certificates for

all of its buildings.

15. 1% - BERRE (&)

A LM - BB RRER AT HE AR
FEREREDINE :

BF 20ZE 354
HEMERE TEEHE A SRR AN AR AT

HEEA
Heas 5Z 104
WD 5%
1) 8 4 5284

AEBERERFHMRPBIALE -

R_E——F+-_A=+—8 A&£EER
FEHAREES,200,000T( = F——F+=
AB=+—8 : ARK¥138,400,0007T) K 1EF
WHRAAEEE TIRTERESREE
ER(HIEES0) -

RZZE—=—F+=—A=+—8 " B—EuR®
4T ) BR DT (B 49 A R %6,000,0007T I
(ZE——F+=—A=+—H8: AR¥
6,300,0007T ) RAEE TIZS) - REBE RS
FIEETHERES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—AIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWHE

2012 2011
—F—=F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BWERASRE 33,001 7,326

Transfer from owner-occupied wEREEA(fE15)
properties (note 15) 25,050 27,142
Depreciation provided during the year AN E & B (1,968) (1,467)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—BMNRESE 56,083 33,001
Fair value NREE 147,265 97,398

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and are depreciated on a straight-line basis under the medium

term leases.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note

37(a).

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying amount of RMB6.6 million (31 December 2011: RMB13.5
million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the

Group (note 30).

The fair values of the investment properties as at the end of the
reporting period were determined based on the valuations performed
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuer. The fair value represents the amount
at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length

transaction at the date of valuation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

18.

17. HEFENRK

2012 2011

=2—=F —T——5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEESRHE 233,511 85,817

Acquisition of a subsidiary (notes 35) W&} E A & (F{7E35) - 154,281
Recognised during the year RNEFHER (5,524) (6,587)

Carrying amount at 31 December Rt—A=+—HZEA&HE 227,987 233,511
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under HETHAMRPREARE - B AP HE

medium term leases.

o

\

At 31 December 2012, none of Group’s prepaid lease payments was RZE—Z=—F+=ZA=+—H0 ~KEEMR
pledged (31 December 2011: RMB23.3 million) to secure certain EENHARABAERE TRITEREER

bank loans granted to the Group (note 30).

HIFER( ZE—F+=-A=+—H: A
R #23,300,0007t) (M3E30) °

GOODWILL 18. BHE
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2011: R-ZE——F—H—HQ:

Cost and net carrying amount AN K BR T FHE 90,204
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35)  UEEME AR (FI35) 1,051
Adjustments during the year (note 32) FRFE (FizE32) (4,581)
Cost and net carrying amount RZE——FR-_T——F+-H

at 31 December 2011 and 2012 =T —HZRAEREERE 86,674
At 31 December 2011 and 2012: WZB——FR_F——F+-F=+—H:

Cost B 86,674

Accumulated impairment RETRE -
Net carrying amount BRI 3HE 86,674
Impairment testing of goodwill AR ERR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated BRATHEEHEGHEEE D RERKEDN
to the subsidiary’s retail operation acquired: ZEEBTRAA :

201243 139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the subsidiary has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 13% (2011: 13%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2011: 4%), which was the same as the long term average growth

rate of the industry.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
subsidiary for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing

of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected

market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect

specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external

information sources.

140,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APt B AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assets of the Group represent the carrying amount

of a distribution network and software acquired.

19. BILEE

AEENEVEERESND BEG KM

ZIREEE ©

2012 2011
—E-—F T ——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BHRA
accumulated amortisation Bk 25THESH 11,467 11,055
Additions N 11,073 3,346
Amortisation provided during the year 7N4F & f# §i5 ¢ 45 (2,928) (2,934)
At 31 December, net of R+=-—A=+—8
accumulated amortisation Bk 25THESH 19,612 11,467
At 31 December R+—A=+—8:
Cost [B%N 36,653 25,580
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (17,041) (14,113)
Net carrying amount BRERE 19,612 11,467

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

periods:

NEBVEEREERNERFR - ZFE
MEERE TIRRRKREERRETH#E -

Distribution network 10 years PaR =ik 104
Software 5-10 years B 5-10%F
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIHHERERE
2012 2011
—ZT——F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Listed equity investments in the PRC, A E A RIRAKE
at fair value (note a) RAREE (Hita) 8,332 6,314
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ JE ERAKRE » K AE 1,188 1,188
Less: impairment loss of B R EREEX
equity investment (1,188) (1,188)
Total aEr 8,332 6,314
Analysed for reporting purpose as: FLERE B DT ¢
Non-current assets ERBNE 8,332 6,314
20124 3R

ERREERESERNERAT

141
R’



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F——F+_-F=1—HIFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale investments. The fair
value of the listed equity investment is based on quoted market

prices.

Note:

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fair value gains on the
Group’s available-for-sale investments, net of tax, of RMB1,513,000
(2011: loss of RMB404,000) was recognised as other comprehensive

income.

21. OTHER LONG TERM LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Other long term lease prepayments of the Group represent the long
term portion of rental expenses prepaid to third parties in respect
of the lease of certain premises and warehouses in Beijing for a

period of five to eighteen years.

20. AHEERSTRE(E)

21.

PR EBEREERATHBERARER
BAZHKRE - ELTRARENAAEE

ENTIZRERETE -

@ REEZZ—Z-—F+ZA=+—HILEFE
A AEEAEEERKBREWZNARE
BB FE R ARK1,513,000T(=F—
—4& : 8K AR¥404,0007T) - R A EAD

2 ©

Hitt RBAERMNK

AEBEMRPEEREMREREILREE
ETHHRARETN\FNEEEMRES -
‘NG E=THHERN KPR

2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTR ARET T
Cost at 1 January, net of R— A — B8R 2T
accumulated amortisation 74,089 76,829
Additions &0 8,258 15,871
Amortisation provided during the year AN&EE RN # R E (18,648) (18,611)
At 31 December, net of W+ A=+— Bk [atEE
accumulated amortisation 63,699 74,089
Less: current portion included in B BEREMNT  BZER
prepayments, deposits and H A FE U 2 R ERE
other receivables (13,139) (18,648)
Non-current portion FEARERE S 50,560 55,441
142

“fl  ANNUAL REPORT 2012
Tt " BEIING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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22,

23.

INVENTORIES 22. 7

2012 2011
—E——F T ——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFIT
Merchandise and produce for resale & & r RAE & 1,527,007 1,406,991
Raw materials GUoEe 8,690 7,183
1,535,697 1,414,174
Low value consumables KESHFER 249 2,632
1,535,946 1,416,806

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEWERFR
2012 2011
—ZT—_—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Trade receivables FEMBR TR 1,400,937 1,358,876
Allowance for doubtful debts BIREE (1,891) -
1,399,046 1,358,876

The Group normally allows a credit period of not more than 90
days to its customers. A longer credit period is granted to its major
customers with long term relationship. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Before accepting any
new customers, the Group will assess the potential credit quality
and define credit limits. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing
except for amounts due from Beijing Shoulian Trading Company
Limited (“Shoulian”), an independent third party, which bore interest

at a rate of 6.63% (2011: 6.5%) per annum.

AEEHETEFNERH—RTBEBBNLT
B - SR BERMEGHEEANEZEEFE TR
REV(E A E o REBE BRI IZERH KK
BlH) KR - EEAFELZA - A% E
BHBHECEAEERRATEEARE -
ERERES T M0 AR ER S BT
Eo-BRERBYE = HIETEMEAEEES
PR A R ([ & B 1) 69 B A 7 U BR SR IR 4F | &
6.63% (ZT——%F : 6.5%)aT 250 » HAbfE
BRI TET B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZ—F——F+_-F=1—HAIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date which

23. BWRN (&)

AR ER B0 5 ) A5 SR B A0 JE MR TR PR 4
RSB BRAEREEANEE R B RGE

approximated the respective revenue recognition dates and net of BREERBRER ST T ¢
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFIT
Within 2 months MEA 2R 767,402 795,116
2 to 6 months m1E A =78 A 462,744 427,455
6 months to 1 year ~NEAE—F 78,087 50,737
1 to 2 years —FEWE 10,813 85,568
Over 2 years MFIA L 80,000 -
1,399,046 1,358,876
The movements in allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: ZREFENEBOMIT
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
At 1 January n—A—H - =
Impairment losses recognised BERRRER K 1,891 =
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 1,891 =
The allowance for doubtful debts represented the individually impaired EREEAEASEGFEAUADHN —REFH

trade receivables related to a customer that was in dispute with the
Group on the outstanding amount. Other than the arrangement with
Shoulian disclosed below, the Group does not hold any collateral

or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI R MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F——F+_-H=1—HIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

23. BWRN (&)

5K B 3R 1L B 360 0 B M 2K 60 BB B ) AR
W -

2012 2011
=2—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Overdue by: EA
Less than 1 month TEEBE—EA 116,653 164,563
1 to 3 months —EmAZ=EA 50,311 262,893
3 months to 1 year =@RE—%F 84,441 136,305
1 to 2 years —FEWE 80,000 =
331,405 563,761

Included in the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2012 was an amount of RMB80 million (31 December 2011: RMB80
million) due from Shoulian, and the overdue balance was RMB80
million (31 December 2011: RMB80 million). In the opinion of the
directors, no impairment is necessary in view of the following

consideration:

- Shoulian has pledged one piece of land and related buildings
situated in Beijing with a total value of not less than the
carrying amount of trade receivables of RMB80 million due from
Shoulian as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 to the Company

to secure the overdue trade receivables.

Other than the trade receivables due from Shoulian and the
individually impaired receivables set out above, the receivables that
were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Of the trade
receivables at the end of the year, RMB458.9 million (31 December
2011: RMB403.7 million) is due from the Group’s largest customer.
There are no other customers who represent more than 10% of
the total balance trade receivables. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no further
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are

still considered fully recoverable.

R-T——F+-A=+—8  AEERKE
AR #80,000,0007C( = ——&+=A
=+—H8 : AR#80,000,0007T) %K & &8
H g Hi R (872 © %5 3 A R #80,000,0007T (=
T——F+ZA=+—H : AR¥80,000,000
TT) c BEERA - ERUATERY FFEE
BIREURIE -

- EBTESMRLENBETERT=Z
——FR=ZE——F+=ZA=1+—H¥
5 Bk B & W BR Sk A R 680,000,000 T 9
— BT REEEEERGEARRR - A
%78 A P IR BR SRR AL IR AR ©

B b it 9 5 Bek Y 8 L2 B 0 % BE 98 Ak 1 A B Uik
RN AR R EA LB A R IFAE
R E THEYE P E AR BERRE
KB REREWRERERBREFR - BARK
458,900,0007L( = F——F + - A =+—
B : AR%403,700,0007T) R B R A EEH
BAEP c Rk 2o BEHEME P A E
L BR SRR 38 P U PR SR AR BE A9 10% © ERATE
K RAEEFERA BRERBERNES
ANEABEEZ L EMERRA 2 HUKE - &

RE VB ZRTEE — S HETRERE -
F—_—d b R,
o
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23a. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2012

were transferred to HSBC through factoring arrangements.

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the Group and
HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for an amount of not
exceeding 90% of the factored trade receivable to the Group.
HSBC collects the entire amount of the trade receivable and is
only required to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess
of the loan amount. As the Group has neither transferred
specifically identifiable cash flows nor fully proportionate share
of all or part of the cash flows, the Group cannot apply the

derecognition model to part of the factored trade receivable.

Since the factoring of trade receivable is on a full recourses basis,
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the cash
received on the transfer as secured bank loans (see note 30).
The financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

Carrying amount of transferred assets E%EERREEE
Carrying amount of associated liabilities B & EHEFE(E

Vo BETWMEE

W& SRR E3H S - AL B EBRIE
ZHER_E——F+_A=+—HHNET
JRE LS B TR B SR 4R E R AT ©

REAEEEELRTEENRERE  E
SRITAASERETBBERUERRES
BO0%HIRTTE K o ME L IRIT U AR U AR K
2HER - ERALAEEXTEBERSEN
A - AAREEBEABE A HBNRSR
XARERTREPIDZHENR SR - E

It B TR IR A0 FE AR SR BP0 4% LE RERRA

BEVA RSB EA o

H

RITHZERERREZE2HERE
KSEYARBBZSFREERNERER R

e - B AR KRR MAREE
3 # HE SR 7T U B B 3R 2 T 3R A DA JR R AR SR 4B
RIBROIRITER(MFE30) - ZFEMEER
REE B G R BRI P BR R R A AT

5 -

vl
]

Bl

=

—

R=ZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

Trade

receivable
factored to

banks with

full recourse
MERTTIRALHY
AR REEREN
FE U BR SRR IR
RMB’000
ARETTT

89,634
(50,000)

Net position B

39,634
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. FAf{® - &R HMEKFIER

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
Other receivables Hoh FE R 104,742 84,949
Impairment A (6,812) (7,000)
97,930 77,949
Prepayment to suppliers BRI 407,514 333,525
Prepaid expenses R3] 43,099 54,306
Input value-added tax receivables EERERTERRIE 163,455 187,418
711,998 653,198

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of other receivables HE MR EHESE T ¢

are as follows:

2012 2011
—E—-F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 7,000 7,000
Impairment losses reversed RERKED (188) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,812 7,000

The individually impaired other receivables relate to receivables from

customers that have been outstanding over 360 days.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

HBBIC0OR R RE LM E M BRI E
BERERE -

R 1% HE RO B B 780 R R R 2 R ik 0 AT 1R

™

2012 2011
—E—-F T ——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT

Overdue by bl
Less than 1 month TNEB—EA - 7,600
1 to 2 years —FEWE 4,600 =
4,600 7,600
201243 147
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24.

25.

26.

148‘

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. FE{IH R R HthEWRIE (&)
(Continued)
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the ERELS  RRESRA HAERHA
opinion that no further impairment is necessary in respect of the ERMEB AR BERIES A K E#E — PRI
overdue balance related to a debtor with long term relationship. HE NESHAEREEEANEL - ZF
And there has not been a significant change in credit quality and B R E AR 250U E -
the amount is still considered recoverable.
Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired B R 38 HA th AR RU(E B0 B B R B RT B HA
amounted to approximately RMB93,330,000 (31 December 2011: R#93,330,000( = ——F+=ZA=+—
RMB70,349,000) related to a large number of diversified debtors for H : AR#¥70,349,0007T) ' D ERZAH
whom there was no recent history of default and the balances are BEHNRENTRARE  BZESEEERT
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral RO EEUWE - REBEGZEHIBLEERS
or other credit enhancements over these balances. BRIECERIR
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT 25. BHiRE
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s short-term investments RZZE—=—F+-A=+—8 ' "&EEH
represented investments in financial products operated by a bank. REEBRTEENSRERIEE - ZIKE
The investment principal-protected, with expected annual return at BRAR . BIEH2 8%EWHER - AR
2.8% per annum. The short-term investment of RMB25,000,000 25,000,000 TR A B EE R T —=F —
was fully settled on 5 January 2013. RRARZHEE -
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SBITHHBRRS
2012 2011
—E--F —E=——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTH S 461,110 580,655
Time deposits EHFER 4,158 36,351
465,268 617,006
Less: Pledged for bills payable A BEAEBRER (4,158) (36,351)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 461,110 580,655
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

27.

At the end of the reporting period, except for cash and bank
balances of RMB76,000 (2011: RMB74,000)

denominated in foreign currencies, the Group’s cash and bank

which were

balances were denominated in RMB, which are not freely convertible
in the international market. The remittance of funds out of Mainland
China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC

government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
carry interest at market rates which range from 0.35% to 0.5% (31
December 2011: 0.4% to 0.5%) per annum. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the end of reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is analysed as follows:

26.

27.

RTEHREBE(E)

R EHEAERK  AEERe RRTE
BB ARKET6,000L(ZT——F : ARK
74,0007T ) LASNEETIME SN - HERGIAAN RIS
B BETEREEMISaH AR - KRREX
BE 7 & < P SR 78 38 <F R B RS B9 BE 3 BR il 15
HIE °

RITERREA A R T BRITIF RO EE
FEME - RHEBHERNHARNMN—KRE
=EA FETARAEENNZRE T
oo WIRE S B 5 HE H1F 3R 2 & B A
B o RITHR R E B R EF R R KRN R
0.35%%0.5% (ZE——F+-A=+—
H : 0.4%Z0.5%) K] 1 3% F R REE ° RITH
BEBERRTERFTREDRRZANELH
BIEERRIT

ENERARRE

RIS A RS - N R R R R
AHZ R AT

pii

2012 2011

—E—C—F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFIT

Within 2 months MEAZA 1,039,808 1,096,575
2 to 6 months m1EA =758 A 28,734 203,606
6 months to 1 year NERE—F 4,090 14,662
1 to 2 years —FEWE 1,214 4,392
Over 2 years BBEME 1,742 4,292
1,075,588 1,323,527

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms. As at 31 December 2012, the bills
payable of the Group amounting to RMB21 million (31 December
2011: RMB130.5 million) were secured by certain of the Group’s
pledged time deposits amounting to RMB4.2 million (31 December
2011: RMB36.4 million) (note 26).

BRERRZETHGEHE - —REZHR
BOK - R—_FE——F+_-_A=+—H" ' &
S B ERA R R ARB21,000,0007T( =%
——®+=-A=+—8 : AR%130,500,000
JT) - BANSE B A H) A R#4,200,00070(=
T——F+=-A=+—H : AR¥36,400,000
70 BUE T ERTT A IR E BT SRR AR (e
26) °

201268 4, 149
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28.

29.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HittfERIERERIER

2012 2011

—EB——F —T—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits Ef#e « TEREF 8,298 7,584
Deposits from suppliers and lessees /&R MAM AR S 32,830 31,292
Advances from customers B EFIRER 466,998 465,365
Interest expense payable FERFEE R 9,764 10,416
Rental expense payable EARSER 14,910 16,693
Accrued operating expenses fERrEEER 4,769 6,138
Construction fee payables ENIRE 85,136 78,640
Other Hity 43,984 43,688
666,689 659,766

DEBENTURES

On 12 July 2012, the Company issued a debenture in aggregate
amounting to RMB200 million, with a term of maturity of one year.
The debenture is unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.55% per annum,
and is issued through the Bank of Beijing. The carrying amount of
the debenture approximates to its fair value. The debenture will be

settled on 12 July 2013.

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued a debenture in aggregate
amounting to RMB300 million, with a term of maturity of one year.
The debenture is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6.68% per annum,
and is issued through the Bank of Beijing. The carrying amount of
the debenture approximates to its fair value. The debenture was

fully settled on 24 August 2012.

150
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29. &%

R-E——F+A+-H ARFETTLHE
25 A R¥200,000,000THES © HARR A—
F o ZBEFEER FHEE4656% BB
JERRITEAT - REFNERSHEELAED
AEE IER=_ZT—Z=ZF+tA+=-BFU

fE& o

RZZE——FNAZ+WEHE  RAFETT
#8785 AR 300,000,000 tMES @ R A
—F - ZBEFEIER  FHEE6.68% A
BILRIRITRIT - REFNEES BRI
NRrfBE - ZBEBFERZT—FNAZT
EEE -
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

30. MIERITEN

2012 2011
—E—-CF —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Current REE S
Bank loans-secured BITER-BEF - 230,000
Bank loans-trade RITER — EUIRRE 50,000 -
receivables factored
Bank loans-unsecured RITER— EIKHTR 2,287,707 1,681,519
2,337,707 1,911,519
Non-current FAHEBD
Bank loans-secured RITER—BHEAR 200,000 200,000
2,537,707 2,111,519
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARET T
Analysed into: DITE
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIBITER -
Within one year —FR 2,337,707 1,911,519
In the second year EF - 200,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZAF (DEERMF) 200,000 =
2,537,707 2,111,519

All of the Group’s bank loans, which are denominated in RMB,

bear annual interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 7.2% (2011: 5.1%

to 7.2%).

REBAAERITERHUARETE &
ENR5.0%E7.2% (ZEBE——4F : 51%%

7.2% ) B EF =K o

20124 %R
I RRBEEEEEROERA A

Ko
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A M
= 7T

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

e

Secured bank loans

As at 31 December 2012, the secured bank loans of the Group
amounting to RMB200 million were secured by certain of the
Group’s buildings and investment properties with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately RMB89.2 million (note 15),

and RMB6.6 million (note 16), respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the secured bank loans of the Group
amounting to RMB430 million were secured by certain of the
Group’s buildings, investment properties and prepaid lease
payments with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB138.4 million (note 15), RMB13.5 million (note 16), and
RMB23.3 million (note 17), respectively.

Trade receivables factored bank loans

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans amounting to RMB50
million (2011: nil) was secured by factoring certain of the
Group’s trade receivables with carrying amount of approximately

RMB89.6 million (see note 23a).

Unsecured bank loans

Except for the bank loans of the Group amounting to
RMB1,059.6 million (2011: RMB750 million) guaranteed by
the Company and RMB758.1 million (2011: RMB731.5 million)
guaranteed by a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Trading Company
Limited (“Chaopi Trading”), the Group’s bank loans amounting
to RMB470 million (2011: RMB200 million) were unsecured as
at 31 December 2012.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

30. MIRMITERE)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEFRTER
RZF—-—ZF+-A=+—-H0 &
SEMNEAERARTERBTARYE
200,000,0007T * B3 AR5k E BRE E 5 5l
#) 5 AR #89,200,0007T (F3E15) & A
R #6,600,0007T (i 5E16) B & T F
RGBS RBIRER o

R-T——F+-HA=+—H ' =«
EEMNBEFRITERBTARE
430,000,0007T * B4~ E AR E B 5 5
#) 5 A B #138,400,0007T ( M 5£15)
AR #13,500,0007T (FiEE16) R A R #
28,300,0007C( ff sE17) W9 & F 12 -
BEMER TR EENRIERIKA
FEIR o

FE U BR SRR I SR 1T B 2K
R-E——F+-A=+—H @t
28 5 AR#50,000,0007T( = F——F
E)NRTERUAEEEEEEN A
AR #89,600,0007T )& T & Ut BR 32X 1
RIRIE (Mi5E23a) °

\IKFRITER
RZZE—Z—F+=ZA=+—H" ' BRX
& B 25 A R #1,059,600,0007t( =
T —— % : AR ¥750,000,0007T ) &Y
RITERBARARRBERRARKE
758,100,0007t( ZF —— % : AR
731,500,0007T ) B3 — K [ & 2 Aldb
B EBEROER DA HAREE D
RERBERIN NEBRGTARE
470,000,000c( =T ——F: AR
200,000,0007T ) KISRITE FRIEEIR ©
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31.

32.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income of the Group as at 31 December 2012 represented
deferred government grants and deferred income arising from the

31. EZLEWA

RZZE——F+=-RA=+—H ~EENE
T A6 I AT BT 6 B KR B TR 0 22D At &

loyalty points programme. HIRIEUA o
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—B—HNERELHE 4,887 3,616
Additions (note (b)) i (HieE(o) 3,402 2,487
Released to the consolidated BRELHERE
income statement (2,754) (1,216)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ —A=+—HHNEEEE 5,535 4,887
Current portion REEH (3,669) (2,754)
Non-current portion FEARERE 1,866 2,133
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+-A=+—HANEELHE
Deferred government grants T B 4 B 2,133 2,400
Loyalty points programme B RS 3,402 2,487
5,535 4,887
Notes: MoaE -

(@  In 2005, the Beijing Municipal Commission of Development and Reform
and Beijing Municipal Chaoyang District Finance Bureau granted
RMBS3 million and RMB1 million, respectively, to the Company for
the construction of a fresh produce logistics centre and a logistics
system. The construction had been completed as at 31 December
2005. Therefore, the amounts were recorded in government grants
and are amortised at RMB267,000 each year over the useful lives of
the corresponding assets beginning from 1 January 2006.

REZZETRF  kAMBERIRELZESH
MG ERMEBRARNARDAERAR
#3,000,0007T & A K #1,000,0007T H9 7 Bf
CAREREHRRREXROLERMRRSR -
ZBIRER-ZTTAE+-_A=1+—H%
B e Bt - ZHBEEARNHEEE @ T H
T RF-A—ARKREBEER{ERS
MR85 A R267,0007T °

(o)  The Group maintains a loyalty points programme within its retail segment ) AEEEETEHIHRE —BERTESRZE
which allows customers to accumulate points when purchasing goods e ATEREASETEEREENM
in the Group’s retail outlets. The points can be redeemed for discounts, B 2FED - ZED EHRENRERER
subject to a minimum number of points to be obtained in the future. The Al AER M IT(E - FA{EB R MR EE
amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is recorded in deferred STRBEEWA  EEZRBET —FEHRL
income until the awards are redeemed in the next year, or the liability Bk ETR T —=F=AFI8 -
is otherwise extinguished in March 2013.

DEFERRED TAX 32. ELEFIIE

2012 2011

—E-—C—fF —T——%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETTT

Deferred tax assets EES T A E 16,543 18,720
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFEREE (11,061) (11,474)
5,482 7,246

- ‘ 201265 153
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following is the major deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior

32.

reporting years:

A BLIE ()

RAFER E—ARSFEAR  AEERER
MIBEREEE REREEHERNT

Deferred

Deferred tax liabilities tax assets
BEEREAE EREREEE

Losses

Capitalised Fair value  available for

Changes interest adjustments offsetting
in fair - expense into Gain on  arising from against

value of an  construction

exchange acquisition of future taxable

available-for-sale  in progress ofa a subsidiary profits
investment AR TIREA buldng  YEEHTE Epc:s
A ERE At FEE®R DREEN  RRER Total
AnEEEY  FEREX & ArEEREE  FENEX it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTE ARETR
At 1 January 2011 R=E——F—f-A (1,625) (4,497) (5,268) (894) 12,172 (112)
Acquired in a business W—IBE%EHNES (Fi:E35)
combination (note 35) - - - (243) - (243)
Goodwil adjustments FENEHR(Ff:E18)
during year (note 18) = = = — 4,581 4,581
Credit to other FSIAEM2HEKE
comprehensive income 135 - - - - 135
Credit to income statement ~ &FABEE - 651 267 - 1,967 2,885
At 31 December 2011 and ~ RZF——F+ZA=1—H
1 January 2012 —E-——%-f-H (1,490) (3,846) (5,001) (1,137) 18,720 7,246
Credit to other AR 2 ERE
comprehensive income (505) - - - - (505)
Credit to income statement  &F ABBZRH) - 651 267 - 2,177) (1,259)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——&+-A=1+—H (1,995) (3,195) (4,734) (1,137) 16,543 5,482

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of

RMB10,375,000 (31 December 2011:

RMB11,532,000).

The

Group’s unused tax losses as at 31 December 2012 will expire in
year 2013 to year 2017 if not utilised. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such tax losses as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

R-ZT——F+_A=+—H A&EBEX
AT IEE KX A R%10,375,0000L( =&
—— &+ —-A=+—8: AR¥11,532,000
JC) o AEBRFERBIBEERIOARER @ R
—?—:’E‘E ? ‘tﬁziﬁgﬂ FLJEREEM\/\
E?%fRIETEQE*EEQE’]ELFﬁ SHEE - B
AR = BT A AP IR FERL A -

33. BRITRA
33. ISSUED CAPITAL
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETIT
Issued and fully paid: BITRAR

230,060,000 Domestic 230,060,000/ B EE
Shares of RMB1.00 each AREE1.00HAE B 230,060 230,060

182,160,000 H shares of 182,160,000/ ZAX EE
RMB1.00 each ARE1.007T BIHML 182,160 182,160
412,220 412,220

154‘
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34. RESERVES

(@)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts of the Company's reserves and proposed final
dividend and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented as follows:

34. f#E

(@)

A 0 i 8 R AE A A B 4 T
B E B RR A S5 B0
AGHRERBRD -

RRABRFERNEFENRHE - K
REE REZBBERZFIMT :

Statutory Proposed

Share Capital surplus final
premium reserve reserve dvidend Retained
account R AT K profits Total
RinaER NES BHLE REkE fRE fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRE ARETT ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE—45—A-A5%8 605,171 5,121 80992 82,444 204,549 978,277
Total comprehensive income ERZENERE
for the year - - - - 92,004 92,004
Final 2010 dividend declared ER-Z-ZEERE - - - (82,444) - (82,444)
Transfer from retained profits REF|EEA - - 9,200 - (9,200) -
Proposed final 2011 dividend BE-T——FERE - - - 82,444 (82,444) -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=1—A
and 1 January 2012 RR=E-——%-F-A 605,171 5,121 90,192 82,444 204,909 987,837
Total comprehensive income EEXENELE
for the year = = = = 73,440 73,440
Final 2011 dividend declared ERZE——FERE - - - (82,444) - (82,444)
Transfer from retained profits REF|EEA - - 7,344 - (7,344) -
Proposed final 2012 dividend BE-T-—FERE - - = 41,202 (41,222) =
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 605,171 5,121 97,536 41,022 229,783 978,833

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the respective
companies’ articles of association, the Group and its subsidiaries
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses), determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of each entity’s
reserve fund reaches 50% of its registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital
after such uses.

BEAPBERGERBEARERRTE
AR REMBAREEEFEARS
STERIREEMESK - GFERERFRFE
(RABEFEEERR)10%5 AR AT
BHAES - EEATRHBAES RS
BHIE N R B ANAI50%0EF - B BAUEE
RREERN - AERBAESITAR
BREAREFEBEIGENARER B
FEA%  HBBEAEILRAREMER
#125% ©

L ‘ 201268% 4, 100
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION 35. ESH
On 25 January 2011, the Group acquired an 86% interest in Beijing RZE——F—A=Z+HHB  AEERE
Jingchao Trading Company Limited (“Jingchao”) from a third party, FEBMEWETIERRBEEARAR( R
Shoulian. Jingchao is engaged in the retail industry. The acquisition 1) 86%HIMRME - REBREZTETH %K
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market. The HEASEMSHAREBN - - WEK
purchase consideration for the acquisition was RMB259,325,000, & A ARK259,325,0007T + FAUEE B 2 BIlLA
settled in the forms of cash and trade receivables from Shoulian, ] & A R #80,000,0007T & B & B A fE Uk B8R
of RMB80,000,000 and RMB179,325,000, respectively, at the HAR®E179,325,00070 3 5 ©
acquisition date.
Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB341,000 have been BT AR¥341,000 B BRI AT B2 S
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been EWREEER  WERRREHER 285
recognised as an expense in the period, included in other expenses BHEZZT——F+A=1+—HLFEN
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 B RERTFHEMBERA
December 2011.
(a) Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date (@) WEBREANKBEERERS
of acquisition
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of R R B HRNEEREENA
Jingchao as at the date of acquisition were as follows: REEHOT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
”SZB%HTEE%\
NREE
RMB'000
ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents & RIRITEEER 3,538
Trade receivables FEM AR 1,024
Loans receivables JEWE TR 100,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfIER - e R E AL EIRGR 51
Property, plant and equipment Y - B M 41,827
Prepaid lease payments HETBRRK 154,281
Deferred tax liability RIERIAE & (380)
Tax payable FEBITR TR (24)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AHRRFEEAN R BEMAS 300,317
Consideration transferred: BEERHE
Fair value of the 14% equity interests in Jingchao ELEM%E’]H%EE’J NAEE 42,043
Cash 179,325
Trade receivables from Shoulian @ %Hap B FE U R X 80,000
Total consideration HREHE 301,368
Goodwill e 1.051

1 56 ‘W ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RaR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ_—F—FF+-F=1—HIFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(@) Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date () WEREANKBEEREBE)
of acquisition (Continued)
The Group considers the most important factors to decide AEBATWEREMERNZEE
the purchase considerations are favourable locations, which WEZARBANELL  AEEERRE
are not recognised as intangible assets at acquisition date e MEWEARBEERRSERE
because they cannot be measured reliably. None of the E - BRHNEEMEEHRSNRMAEH
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income KB ©

(b)

tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition

(b) WERRSRFHE

RMB’000

ARETIT

Cash consideration HeRE (80,000)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTIEIR € MIRTT 454 3,538
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents REREGEHNRSRTPEEN

included in cash flows from investing activities Re kR EEYRLFE (76,462)
Transaction costs of the acquisition RELEESNRSRTEEH

included in cash flows from operating activities I HE A S A AR (341)

76,803

20124 4R 157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ—F—

(@)

EFELZA=F—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. €T H
Categories of financial instruments (@) €£MIEER
2012 2011
—E--F —E=——%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T ARET T
Financial assets CREE
Fair value through profit or loss A7 BB ZEFF Az
Short-term investment MERE 25 25,000 -
Available-for-sale AR ERE
Available-for-sale, at fair value — AJ#EHEREZ AR EE 20 8,332 6,314
Loans and receivables B R EM A
(including cash and (BEEDRESZEY)
cash equivalents)
Trade receivables FEUBR =X 23 1,399,046 1,358,876
Other receivables H At FE R 97,930 84,949
Pledged deposits HEIRIFR 26 4,158 36,351
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEBY 26 461,110 580,655
1,995,576 2,067,145
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised costs e N
Trade and bills payables ERNERRRERE 27 1,075,588 1,323,527
Debentures &% 29 199,650 299,200
Other payables Hph A 3K 147,437 137,472
Interest-bearing bank loans M BRI TE X 30 2,537,707 2,111,519
3,960,382 3,871,718
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EMREEBZEMBER

(b)

158‘

gt

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash, bank
deposits and balances, trade receivables and other receivables,
short-term investment, available-for-sale investments, trade
and bills payables, other payables, debentures and interest-
bearing bank loans. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the interest rate
risk. There has been no change to the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk. Details of interest rate risk
and foreign currency risk in respect of the market risk are

described as follows:

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank loans (see note 30) and bank balances
and deposits, which carry prevailing market interest rates. The
Group’s policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates

available so as to minimise the fair value interest risk.

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk on bank balance and
deposits is presented as management consider the sensitivity on
interest rate risk on bank balances and deposits is insignificant.
The sensitivity analyses are based on the exposure to interest
rates fluctuation for interest— bearing bank loans. If interest
rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2012 would decrease/increase by RMB25,377,000
(2011: RMB21,115,000).

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this

note.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. ERIA#E)

(b) EREERFEMBEE)

5 A B
AEBXBGRAREIE/MEERR - A&
B E IR = B R 187 8 R B 1 75 U I R B

RBFEHIRIOT

FIEmBREE

AEBORBENABA N XRRITER
(K3E30) RIRITT SN E THIRITERT
MEBEEMERERT - REENERKRE
AREESREENNEX - UEAAEE

MEEBEERE -

R 2 5% B8 R 17 4 77 B ) == [ b B Bk
BIED - AERERBETEFHF
KRR HGUREILTER o GRKIED T
ERHI BRITERF R L) o ARFI=E
e/ BREI%EEMHAEZERET
2 AEERHE-_T-——_F+-_HA=1+
—BIEFEOBAFBERE ASA
R#25377,000(ZF——% : AR
#21,115,0007T) °

>+
at

AEEHREBABET MR RARRA
MR E R R E IR A D FE AR -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

1 ?O.':’ﬂ’

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s businesses are principally located in Mainland
China and the Group’s sales and purchases were mainly
conducted in RMB. There would be no material impact on the
Group’s profit or loss and there would be no material impact

on the Group’s equity from changes in exchange rates.

Sensitivity analysis
No sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk is presented
as management consider the sensitivity on foreign currency

risk is insignificant.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its listed
available-for-sale equity investment (note 20). Directors monitor
the equity price of the listed equity on a regular basis. As at 31
December 2012, the Group recognised an accumulated gain
of RMB5,986,000 (31 December 2011: RMB4,473,000) from

available-for-sale equity investment directly in equity.

Sensitivity analysis
No sensitivity analysis on other price risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on equity price risk is

insignificant.
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36. E@MTAE)

(b) EEREEBREMBEE)

SHEE L Bt B EE
AEEXRBERUNTEALE - AA%
B HEMRBHLEIZUARKSIE -
SNEER BB A KRB WS RIERES
TE T EHAKREMNESAEX

SE

e

BT

WA 255 BEINERBHERIED -
HERERFIMNERRNGREL T E
KO

B EEE
AREEBBHAM N EREIRE (T
)X RHEERARTE - ERZTHE
PEETMESNERER - R —=
F+—A=+—8 AEBEERHT
HEEERRENRFTREAARKE
5,986,000c(ZE——F +_H=+—
B : AR#4,473,0007T) °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of counterparties defaulting
on the terms of their agreements. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade receivables, short-term investment, other receivables and
available-for-sale investments represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing
basis and credit evaluations are performed on customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore,
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The credit
risk on balances of cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits is low as these balances are placed with reputable

financial institutions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are
disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial

statements

Liquidity risk management
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity tool. This tool considers the maturity of its

financial liabilities and projected cash flows from operations.
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36. ERIA#E)

(b) EREERFEMBEE)

EARBREE

ERRREZRERFHTERA R K
RMELRR - ARBORERAESE
BY  EERER - BURERHR - BH%R
& REUE R A ERENRE
T8 AKEBR S REEMMAER

REERARR

AEESEERERAR  WHERE
BEA—EREERNTFETERN
il o AN - NSRBI 4B B PR R R TR R
B EAmMAKENZRERY TEKX o
BRRE LR FEBY RERF KGR
BERREEREINSBEE  &F
RS ERRRBE

RA AN £ B B FE U BR 71 K H A e U3k
MEAERNE ZHIBERBERE FYT 5
MRRMIFE23 K24 ©
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

1 §2 y

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
issuance of debentures and interest-bearing bank loans.
The Group’s financing activities are managed centrally by
maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations. The Group also ensures the
availability of bank credit facilities to address any short term

funding requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

36. TEMTAE)

(b) EEREEBREMBEE)

B mREE ()

AEENBERERBRTESRERM
ERTEFEFESHFEEREEN
B FE - ARBHREESHARET
EE - DAFARKINRERASSE
BYRARZERHTEES - NAEERE
MERITEERENAR - ARRERE

RBEHRERE - AEEE A EKE
b 5% A9 7E B R 97 2R AT R0 B BB B R 1A
N

Weighted Total

average 3 months undiscounted Total
interest 1-3 1 year 1102 Over  cash flows carrying
rate On demand months =[EA years 2 years AR amount
nEFEH=E REX -EZER E-F -ZRE RERT BeMEE  4ERE
% RMB'0OO  RWMB'00  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'00O
% ARETT ARBFn  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

2012 —E-CF
Interest-bearing bank loans hasaEs 577 - 3476 2,034,645 1600 208448 2639529 2,537,707
Trade and bills payables EREARRE - 28488 1,047,100 - - - 1,075588 1,075,588
Debentures 5 4.55 - - 209,100 - - 200100 199,650
Other payables EfpjEf - 37,216 - 1 - - W T
65,704 1,431,856 2,353,966 11,680 208448 4,071,654 3,960,382
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RaR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ_—F—FF+-F=1—HIFE

36. ERIA#E)

(b) EREERFEMBEE)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) TEEREE(E)
Weighted Total
average 3 months undiscounted Total
interest 1-3 1 year 1102 Over  cash flows carrying
rate Ondemand months =fiR years 2 years R amount
HETAH= &k —E=fiA -5 ERE HERE RER &5
% RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
%  ARETT ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
2011 5
Inerest-bearing bark loans MERTE 653 - 610799 1375063 206411 - 21041 2111519
Trade and bils payebles EREAREE - 26949 1096578 - - - 1385 13857
Debentures % 6.68 - - 320220 - - 320220 299,200
Other payables BAEAS - 32,131 09 10430 - - 1A 1R
250,080 1708376  1,79982% 206,411 - 3073692 3871718
Capital management BAEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years

ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

AEEEAEENEZRRERE
SENFBELERNIRRFRENE
A PxHEHBERRBEREER
Rt °

RRBEREEREBWRBLEMR
RENEERBREBNE(CETHAE
RRFIABRERERE  AEEA8
AEMBRRRENRE  ARRREES
REBITHR -HE_T——FR T
——F+ZA=T—HLEFEXN E#H
EAREENBER  BERERFEEMA

B, -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

1 §4 5

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank loans, trade and bills payables,
debentures, other payables and accruals and other long term
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios

as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

36. E@MTAE)

(b)

R EE B RMBE(E)

BXEE ()
AEBEERERNABLERERERRE
N RLERRFARRABERINFER
& - FRESEMNERITER - BNHIR
RAERE - B EREARMERTE
RAEEMEMEE RERERASSF
BY - EXABEBAREERE ARG
i - NIEHERANERNBFEL X
m

2012 2011

—E-CF —E——fF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E ARETR AREEFIT

Trade and bills payables FERRRRER 27 1,075,588 1,323,527

Other payables and accruals HE R R R AT E A 28 666,689 659,766

Debentures B \ 29 199,650 299,200

Interest-bearing bank loans Mt BRI TE X 30 2,537,707 2,111,519

Other long term liabilities HEmRIEE 13,685 11,433

Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : I]& MIBEEEY 26 (461,110) (580,655)

Net debt FEIE 4,032,209 3,824,790
Equity attributable to owners of A RIfERE A AEERER

the parent 1,644,044 1,619,871

Capital and net debt EARRFAE 5,676,253 5,444,661

Gearing ratio BfEL X 71% 70%

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RaR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ_—F—FF+-F=1—HIFE

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@)

(b)

As lessor

The Group lease its properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
1 to 20 years. The terms of the leases generally also require

the tenants to pay security deposits.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants falling due as follows:

37. REHENNRH

(@

ERHBEA

AEBERBEKEHERHBELETY

¥ AR -FI - FOFHERS -
EEK—REBSABEAMNRESR -

RZE——F+-_A=+—H  ~&EH
HBERFRESBE T HIESLRANN
RRFEBERBGAEENT :

2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
Within one year N 50,230 42,507
In the second to fifth years, FEEZFAT (EEEMF)

inclusive 133,319 127,872
After five years HEE 24,920 60,968
208,469 231,347

As lessee (b) EREBEA

The Group lease certain of its properties including rental
outlets, warehouse and office buildings under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms

ranging from 1 to 20 years.

AEERBLLEHERFEAAETYE
BREEEEW  AERBEAE - WEHR
RN —FE T FOHHRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—F—FF{+—F=1—HIFE

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 37. REBNNZHE)
(b) As lessee (Continued) (b) EHREBEANE)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H8 ~&H
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling RIBTN A RSB L R R REAER
due as follows: FAREEAOT -
2012 2011
—E-—F —=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within one year —F LA 216,177 136,552
In the second to fifth years, E_EZERF (EEREMFE)
inclusive 856,945 735,350
After five years AFE 1,512,371 1,571,937
2,585,493 2,443,839
A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of some —EHBLEEEE]EER TR
remote contingency is a non-cancellable operating lease NEGRGARE  SRIZEHNEES
as defined under HKFRSs. Pursuant to the relevant lease B 765 R 5 45 RI P E 2% B9 S AT RBE A AR
agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the underlying A - BEBEEEEE RS  EEREE
lease agreements if the attributable outlets have incurred losses EBBE— EHESZE R A ERE
in excess of a prescribed amount or such outlets will not be in BORRECER - NEBAELRIEEE
a position to continue their business because of losses. ERE R -
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EAREIE

The Group had the following capital commitments, principally for
the construction and acquisition of property, plant and equipment

at the end of the reporting period:

REBERERE - AKBEEEREDE - W
FERERENZRIBENERAEDT

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Authorised, but not B - BRETL
contracted for 154,776 15,928
Contracted, but not BRT4) - BREHE
provided for 195,962 105,987
350,738 121,915
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

39. ABALRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @ BAFBHREREMITSHIIARZFIN -
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following AEBERFEANHEREE T #ET T T E
material transactions with related parties during the year: AR :
2012 2011
—EF—= —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P RE ARBT T ARET T
Controlling shareholder: PERRPRER
Expenses on property leasing  #EMAEE A [0) 762 5,299
A subsidiary of the controlling TR — KK B AR
shareholder:
Expenses on property leasing  #EHAEEA (ii) 1,116 1,050
Compensation fee for MEERHEEZR
occupancy (i) 1,076 1,050
Property management fee YEEIRE R (ii) 486 =
Notes: BT

(i) Pursuant to property lease agreements and supplementary
agreements signed between the Company and Chaoyang
Auxiliary and between Chaopi Trading and Chaoyang Auxiliary
during year 2004 to year 2009, respectively, the Company and
Chaopi Trading lease certain properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary
for operation purposes for lease terms ranging from 10 to 20
years at basic annual rentals, including related business taxes

and property taxes, respectively, with a term of increase of rentals

at 5% or 20% for each fixed rental period.

On 30 June 2011, the Company terminated five leasing contracts
with Chaoyang Auxiliary with annual rental of RMB999,000. On
the same date, except for the properties used by five stores of
the Company (the “existing assets”), the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang
District approved the transferring for the land and properties
used by the Company and Chaopi Trading (the “transferred
assets”) from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye
Company Limited (“Hongchao Weiye”). The annual rental of
the existing assets, which still belonged to Chaoyang Auxiliary
was RMB163,000 with a term of increase of rentals at 5% for
each fixed rental period, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2011. The annual rental of the transferred assets is
RMB8,265,000, with a term of increase of rentals for the aforesaid

fixed rental period.

ERREERESERNBRAT & .i':

RIBA R B ERFAEIR ) KPR B HE
BARR —ETNFEE—TTNFHMH
D RIZERT YT E ek M T ek
AARMNAHEHEEHRRIRFAEEST
MEEKERSE BHEtEFE_1
F o EAFHAX(BEBHEEERR
WEBR DEEEESHRAANGER
5%3£20% ©

R-ZB——FXA=1H AAFALKL
TEFARIAFEE A ARE999,0007T
MAEDENHAEEL - AE - BRARA
AfEAAREE AEEHNDEERS
MEDI ERMBABEREEERE
BEBRZESIEBADRI RPIEE
ERM T REE(EENE]) AEH
BlR ARG RO R ER G BEL
EHERBEEDR([AHEZED - #E
—T——H+-_A=1+—8 BEmE
I F e ARE163,0007T © I 446
HRIARF - S EEEHEE R A%
HRE% - EEMENFHERARYE
8,265,0007T * B 417 f & 7£ Al it & &
THEHAR IR R o
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

168

St

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and Chaopi Trading entered into
lease agreements with Hongchao Weiye for the transferred assets
at a basic annual rental of RMB7,344,000 and RMB921,000,
respectively, with the commencement date on 1 July 2011,
with a term of increase of rentals for the aforesaid fixed rental
period. On 13 June 2012, the Company and Chaopi Trading
entered into supplementary agreements with Hongchao Weiye
for the transferred assets to increase the annual rental to
RMB26,997,000 and RMB2,808,000 from 1 July 2012, with a
term of increase of rentals at 3% for each fixed rental period.
The rental paid to Hongchao Weiye by the Company and Chaopi
Trading amounted to RMB17,170,500 (2011: RMB3,672,000)
and RMB1,864,000 (2011: RMB460,000), respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

On 18 June 2012, the supplementary agreements were signed
between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to
which i) the aggregate annual rental of existing assets to be paid
to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company since 1 July 2012 was
increased to RMB1,112,000, with a term of increase of rentals at
3% for each fixed rental period; and ii) the Company leased one
more property from Chaoyang Auxiliary with the commencement
and expiry dates on 1 July 2012 and 31 December 2023. The
annual rental was RMB214,000, with a term of increase of rental

at 3% for each fixed rental period.

The aggregated annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the
Company and Chaopi Trading amounted to RMB745,000 and
RMB5,282,000 for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, respectively.
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RZT——FtA—H ' NAR KA
ﬁ%“%m%ﬁﬁ%%%§%¥%%ﬁ
B HEEREHESHIAARE
7,344,0007T F1 A R #921,0007T - %
MAYPA=—Z——F+tA—A0  BYOE
T <& 7E ATt [ i 78 & HARR N IR HIS K o
RZZE—Z=FA+=H ' A8 Kk#
HEE D BIELAREXREEYEES
WhthE BT —F+A—BRaE
e BEINE AR26,997,0007T &
AR #2,808,0007T ' & EEEHRE
HARR NIRHRIE R3% - HE T ——4F
+TZA=F+—HILFE ' AAF KA
BEX 4L BEENESSRIR/AR
17,170,500 ( Z T ——F : AR
3,672,0007T) & A K #1,864,0007T (=
T——4%F : AR#¥460,0007T) °

RZZ—Z=FA+/\H ' K A]HEH
BIAREIMAHE  NWE)IRNRAIA
TS+ A-BRBREMEIE
FRIARNFERSLELMEARE
1,112,0007T + B7H &£ & E 15 & 2R
AR HIE R3% ¢ KRi)VA R A M E
—RHERRYE  BHEBRKIER
PR/ —FE——FELA-—HRZZT=-=
F+ZA=+—H FEMLAARE
214,0007T - & 1EE EHE HR A HE
A ER3% ©

ARARBHEAEREE_T——F K
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RIE AR ARNFEEREAARE
745,0007T & A R#5,282,0007T °
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Pursuant to property lease agreement signed between Beijing
Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Company Limited (“Xinyang
Tongli”) and Chaoyang Auxiliary dated 30 April 2004, Xinyang
lease certain properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary for operation
purposes with the commencement and expiry dates on 1 January
2004 and 31 December 2023. The annual rental was RMB16,000,
with a term of increase of rentals including related business taxes

and property taxes at 5% for each fixed rental period.

On 14 December 2012, the compensation agreement was signed
between Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to
which (i) Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to
terminate the lease agreement due to the property demolition
policy issued by the government by 31 December 2012, and (ii)
Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to pay compensation to Xinyang
Tongli in the amount of RMB6,349,000, which is determined
after taking into account Xinyang Tongli’'s loss of equipment
and fixtures, loss of business interruption and relocation and
resettlement expenses arising from the termination of lease
agreement. On 18 January 2013, the compensation was received

by Chaoyang Auxiliary.

The annual rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary by Xinyang Tongli
amounted to RMB17,000 and RMB17,000 for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

Pursuant to a property lease agreement was signed between
the Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service
Company Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang
Auxiliary, dated 2 July 2007, the Company leased properties
from Tengyuan Xingye with the commencement and expiry dates
on 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2022, respectively. The annual
rental was RMB2,100,000, with a term of increase of rental at
5% for each fixed rental period for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39. BEBAERS (#)
(@) (Continued) @ (&)
Notes: (Continued) it : (48)
(i)  (Continued) (i) (#&)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and Tengyuan Xingye agreed to —T——FtA—H ANARHERERHA

terminate the leasing contract, and the Company agreed to pay ¥RABRIEMERERHZ  ARERE
the compensation fee for occupancy of the property to Tengyuan MEEREES NYEECRBEEE S —
Xingye to the end of 30 June 2012. The amount of annual rental ZHERNA=TH -BE_ZT——F1+=
and compensation fee for occupancy paid to Tengyuan Xingye A=1+—BLFE  ARvmEREE
by the Company was RMB1,050,000 and RMB1,050,000 for SRS RMEERBHSEIRAA
the year ended 31 December 2011. R 1,050,000 & A R #1,050,000

The

On 18 June 2012, the Company and Tengyuan Xingye entered —E——FXA+TN\B  AREIHEEER
into a new lease agreement with the commencement and expiry EEZZ—MHINEERR  BHEAR
dates on 1 July 2012 and 31 March 2022, respectively. The RIEADRIR—F——FEtA—BR=
annual rental and property management fee was RMB2,232,000 T__F=A= + H-&SFNHek
and RMB972,000, with a term of increase of rental for each EIE B A AR 23200050 AR
fixed rental period. The aggregate amount of annual rental, 972,0007T - B 7E B 16 & HAR A = A
compensation fee for occupancy fee and property management R -BEZT——_F+=-A=+—H
fee paid to Tengyuan Xingye by the Company was RMB1,116,000, IEFE - AARMBEEES MHNE
RMB1,076,000 and RMB486,000 for the year ended 31 He  MECHEBRMEERES R
December 2012. AR#¥1,116,0007T © AR%1,076,000

TCHIA R #486,0007T ©

(i)  Pursuant to a deed of indemnity dated 1 March 2006 and a @iy WRE-ZZF=A—HEZBHHER
supplementary agreement dated 10 August 2006, Chaoyang BM—TEFNATHEZSNHRH
Auxiliary has undertaken to indemnify the Company against the % HEIARIEABBRATEERAA
following: AIfELFEIE -

1. any costs, expenses, losses and claims that the Company 1. WEFREIGHEENS THER
and Chaopi Trading may suffer as a result of relocation or REBRARDYEEEESEE
eviction from certain premises rented from outside parties in B B = 75 BA B R AR FE A & 17 s 4
the event that any of the corresponding tenancy agreements FEREN  ARE] REABR
is determined to be void due to a lack of building ownership & 7 B A 1% 2B ok B Bl % W 3
certificates or proper property title deeds by the lessors; ZHEMAN - T BERK
and =E R

2. any costs and penalties that the Group may suffer due to 2. HRERAAREZSELLEHIE
any breach of the applicable PRC laws and regulations A R R A R B E R A
on the use of the Jingkelong cards and the membership SERERBANPBEERE
reward cards which were issued by the Company as part of FRMAR B ERIB AR R I o

the Group’s marketing strategy for its retail operations.

u}ﬂ& ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

170



39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Compensation to key management personnel of the Group:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APt B AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z—F—FF+-F=1—HIFE

39. AMALRS (&)

(b) AEERMHETIEETEASHHE

2012 2011

—E-—F —E—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREFIT

Short term employee benefits k2 Hi{E B8 7| 14,922 13,526

Post-employment benefits RIKE R 393 349
Total compensation paid to key REZEIE A B FFH

management personnel e 15,315 13,875

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i) and
(a)(i) above also constitute continuing connected transactions

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EREEFMNE —SHBINAHT R
KMTEET ©

B LAt 55 (a) () B (a) (i) PR A BRESE 75 2 5 TR AK
ERRAFAAEFRENFERERS -

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, OF THE COMPANY

Place/Country of Paid up issued/
incorporation or registered ordinary
registration/operations Class of share capital
Name of subsidiary E17A share held BERERT/
HEARER SEEE/BR KRl A& RRRA
RMB
AE#
Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang). Langfang, PRC Ordinary 80,000,000
Company Limited HERY LAk
TRREE (B5) BRAR
Bejing Jingkelong Supermarket Bejing, PRC Ordinary 29,000,000
Chain Company Limited HELR Lk
IRRZRETEHARAR
Chaopi Trading Beijing,fRC Ordinary 368,000,000
Fmg HELR 2R
Xinyang Tongl Beijing, PRC Ordinary 3,200,000
B HELR Sk

Proportion ownership interest

ERREERESERNERAT

held by the Company
AREE Principal activities
RAERE AL TERK
Directly Indirectly
£l i
2012 2011 2012 2011
E-CE |5k |28-IF [5-F
% % % %
100 100 - - Retall of general
merchandise
—REmEE
100 100 - - Retal of general
merchandise
—REnEE
7985 | 7985 - - Wholesale of general
merchandise
—RERRE
52.03 52.03 - - Production of plastic
packing materials and
installation and
maintenance of
commercial equipment
ERARMHEE
IAZRERERRE
20124
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, OF THE COMPANY 40. QA RIME A RFE

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEAR AR

Beijing Chaopi
Shuanglong Alcohol
Sales Company Limited (2)
RS SR nE
HERRALAR)

Beijing Chaopi Huaging Beverage
Company Limited (2)
TR EERHAREARAR)

Beijing Chaopi Flavourings
Flavourings, Company Limited (2)

RIS BRRARRLLAQ)

Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales
Company Limited (2)
TR R R EEERARD)

Shijazhuang Chaopi Xinlong
Trading Company Limited (2)
AFHSHEEREARAT)

Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading
Company Limited (2)
FEHRBEERARAA)

Bejing Chaopi Zhongde Trading
Company Limited (2)
IREUHERERRALLAQ

Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading
Company Limited (2)
TRAHEERERRAAQ)

Taiyuan Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (2)
ARBHBEEERAAQ

Tangshan Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (2)
ELSASHERRAAR)

1 .72?
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Place/Country of
incorporation or
registration/operations
Fidi 174
JEEH/BX

Bejjng, PRC
REER

Beijing, PRC

hENER

Beijing, PRC
RESLR

Beijing, ‘PRC
RER

Shijazhuang, PRC
hERFE

Qingdao, PRC
HEIES

Beijing, ‘PRC
RER

Bejing, PRC
hER

Taiyuan, PRC
HEIRR

Tangshan, PRC
REEL

Paid up issued/
registered ordinary

Class of share capital
share held B4RBE/
A5 A ERRER
RMB
ARE
Ordinary 110,160,000
LRk
Ordinary 56,000,000
LR
Ordinary 50,000,000
Ordinary 36,000,000
Ordinary 5,000,000
LRk
Ordinary 5,000,000
LR
Ordinary 50,000,000
Ordinary 24,000,000
LRk
Ordinary 5,000,000
LR
Ordinary 5,000,000

Proportion ownership interest

held by the Company
ARTHE
REERBAY,
Directly Indirectly
B 53

2012 2011 2012 2011
TE-CE |5 |IE-IF | B E
% % % %

- an | 4an

- - | 4266 | 4266

- - | 4203 [ 4208

- - | 4330 [ 4330

- - | 7985 | 7985

- - | 7985 [ 7985

- - | 7985 [ 7985

- - | 5190 [ 588

- - | 7985 [ 7985

- - | 7985 [ 7985

Principal activities

TERR

Wholesale of beverages

ERA

Wholesale of drinks
and food

BB RmtE

Wholesale of
edible ofl and food
AR
HERREIE

Wholesale of edible oil
RRAE

Wholesale of alcoholic
beverages

ERAmLE

Wholesale of alcoholic

ERBANE

Wholesale of consumer
sanitary products
RitRmit %

Wholesale of alcoholic
beverages

ERAmLE

Wholesale of general
merchandise
—RERHE

Wholesale of general
merchandise

~REntE
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, OF THE COMPANY 40. AXQRIME A RIS (&)

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELALE

Tianjin Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (2)
REPHBERRAAR)

Chaopi Yuli Trading
Company Limited (2)
R RHEERRAAQ)

Chaopi Fangsheng Trading
Company Limited (2)
FRBRAEFRARAA)

Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading
CGompany Limited (2)
ERSHEREARLAR)

Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading
Company Limited (3]
R EEFRRRAAQ)

Beijing Chaopi Tianhua Trading
Company Limited (3)
FRAHREFRARAA)

Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading
Company Limited
(‘Datong Beichen”) (3)
ARSI REEARAR
([AR3ERDE)

Beijing Jingkelong Shoulian
(ioinpany Limited
FRREEERHFARAR

Beiiing Shoulian Jiulong Supermarket

LREBABETARAA

Beiiing Shoulian Heotian Trading
FREBRAAERRE AT

Place/Country of
incorporation or
registration/operations
AR
SEEE/BR

Tianjin, PRC
hERR

Bejing, PRC
HEER

Bejing, PRC
RELR

Jinan, PRC
HEER

Bejing, PRC
HEER

Beiing, PRC
merchandise

HELR

Datong, PRC
HEAR

Beijing, PRC

hEER

Bejing, PRC
HEER

Beiiing, PRC
HEER

Paid up issued/

registered ordinary
Class of share capital
share held BEIRBR/
RinzERl A& B A
RMB
N
Ordinary 15,000,000
EER
Ordinary 12,000,000
LAk
Ordinary 12,000,000
2R
Ordinary 26,000,000
EER
Ordinary 20,000,000
EAR
Ordinary 10,000,000
2R
Ordinary 26,000,000
EAR
Ordinary 398,453,439
ERR
Ordinary 10,000,000
Bk
Ordinary 500,000
EAR

Proportion ownership interest
held by the Company
ARG
FRAERE AL
Directly Indirectly
B i

Principal activities

IEXH

2012 2011 2012 2011

s eI EEAE =
% % % %
- - | 7985 | 798  Wholesale of general
merchandise

—fREmE

- - 3031 30.31 Wholesale of general
merchandise

—REmitE

- - | 6388 [ 6388  Wholesale of general
merchandise

-
- - | 5190 [ 7985  Wholesale of general
merchandise
—REmi &
- - 4 N/A~ Wholesale of general
merchandise
—REmE
- - | 4266 N/A~ Wholesale of general
merchandise

—HSmiE

- - | 7985 N/A~ Wholesale of general
merchandise

—REmE

100 100 - - Retall of general

merchandise

—REntE

Retail of general
merchandise

—REmtE

Retail of general
merchandise

—REntH

173
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

M

41.

All subsidiaries except Chaopi Trading are registered as limited liability
companies under the PRC law. Following a share reform, Chaopi
Trading turned into a joint stock limited company on 31 May 2010.

These companies are directly held by Chaopi Trading or its subsidiary
as to more than 50% of equity interests and are accounted for as
subsidiaries of Chaopi Trading. Since the Company held a 79.85%
equity interest in Chaopi Trading as at 31 December 2012, such
companies have been accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company,
though the equity interests indirectly attributable to the Company are
less than 50%.

The subsidiaries were newly established by the Chaopi Trading during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

On 25 January 2011, the Group acquired an 86% interest in Beijing
Jing Chao Trading Company Limited (“Jingchao”). Since then, Jingchao
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Further details of
this acquisition are included in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. On 30 June 2011, Jingchao was absorbed by Shouchao.
The procedures of de-registration of Jingchao was completed on 19
September 2011,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, the Group had the following
significant event:

(a)

174

gt

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Chaopi
Trading, Datong Beichen and an independent third party on
24 January 2013, Chaopi Trading agreed to transfer 30% of
its equity interest in Datong Beichen for a consideration of
RMB7,800,000, which approximated 30% of the fair values
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Datong Beichen.
After the completion of the transfer of this equity interest,
the Company holds an indirect interest of 55.9% in Datong
Beichen.

On 21 February 2013, the Company applied for issuance a
debenture in aggregate not exceeding amount of RMB750
million, with a term of maturity of no more than 10 years
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The debenture will be
guaranteed by an independent third party, Beijing Chaoyang
District National Capital Operating Management Center, a
state-owned enterprise.
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42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY AT THE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ—F—

2. XAAFAEREHERENUBRFR

END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD INCLUDES: B
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BosE ARETT AREFIT
Non-current Assets IEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - s KR e 1,552,060 1,540,342
Investment properties SE=E 39,140 15,056
Prepaid lease payments ERSENEN 81,898 83,347
Intangible assets i /ﬁ% . 7,824 6,504
Investment in subsidiaries PHB A TR A 1,178,936 959,134
Other long term lease prepayments  H i RHATH GBI 40,630 50,359
Rental deposits HeRES 6,306 6,916
Total non-current assets EREBEERRT 2,906,794 2,661,658
Current Assets MENE E
Inventories FE 327,722 447,480
Trade receivables JEUBR R 91,240 101,218
Prepayments, deposits TEIR - RS REMER R
and other receivables 150,936 225,779
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MReEEY 236,502 255,458
Total current assets MEEEAT 806,400 1,029,935
Current Liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables ERERREE 537,101 595,221
Debentures [=C;) 199,650 299,200
Tax payable FESTIE (5,365) (2,555)
Other payables and accruals E b R EETIE B 559,562 532,562
Interest-bearing bank loans MERITER 810,000 645,974
Deferred income — current portion IRIEW A — ZREFEE 3,669 2,754
Total current liabilities nEBEAaET 2,104,617 2,073,156
Net Current Liabilities mE A EFE (1,298,217) (1,043,221)
Total assets less current Liabilities REERTEEE 1,608,577 1,618,437
Non-current liabilities EnEaE
Interest-bearing bank loans My B ERITIE R 200,000 200,000
Deferred income LLJ&/}\ 1,866 2,131
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEA R 7,928 8,849
Other liabilities Lo B E 7,730 7,400
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEER 217,524 218,380
Net assets FRE 1,391,053 1,400,057
Capital and Reserves RR A
Issued capital BTN 412,220 412,220
Reserves i 34(b) 937,611 905,393
Proposed final dividend BURARHANR B 34(b) 41,222 82,444
Total equity R 1,391,053 1,400,057

2012@& = 175
ERREERESERNBRA " ‘ﬂ‘,"



SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BIFETHEE

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out below.

UTAREAEERNBEREAMBRFE XS
BE  AEREAZEE:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-ZF | Z2——F ZIT-TF TTHF ZTT)N\F
RMB’000 | RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR | ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(EFHRE)
Results E
Revenue A 9,183,922 | 8,632,531 7,438,729 6,691,036 6,683,791
Profit before tax B AT 7 229,628 352,968 305,011 253,565 280,264
Income tax expense FiERiRY (57,824) (79,957) (76,510) (65,049) (76,581)
Profit for the year F T 171,804 273,011 228,501 188,516 203,683
Attributable to: FEBR
Owners of the parent BREEAEA 105,104 210,160 180,502 147,783 156,758
Minority interests FEPE M 66,700 62,851 47,999 40,733 46,925
171,804 273,011 228,501 188,516 203,683
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-—F | Z2—F ZT-TF —TTHF ZTTN\F
RMB’000 | RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREBTR | ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
Assets, Liabilities and Equity &ZE + BEREAR
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,377,251 | 2,281,615 2,153,416 1,838,827 1,687,913
Current assets REBEE 4,137,258 | 4,045,886 3,371,577 2,930,017 2,626,281
Current liabilities mBEE (4,287,849) | (4,210,344) (3,365,476) (3,202,732) (2,748,045)
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/(8E)FH (150,591) |  (164,458) 6,101 (272,715)  (121,764)
Total assets less current liabilities & ERTE & & 2,226,660 | 2,117,157 2,159,517 1,566,112 1,566,149
Non-current liabilities EREALE (226,612) | (225,040)  (454,759) (29,236) (77,533)
Net assets FEE 2,000,048 | 1,892,117 1,704,758 1,636,876 1,488,616
Represented by: A -
Equity attributable to owners BRAFAA
of the parent FEAE AR AR 1,644,044 | 1,619,871 1,492,559 1,388,458 1,325,019
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 356,004 272,246 212,199 148,418 163,597
Total equity iR A B 5E 2,000,048 | 1,892,117 1,704,758 1,536,876 1,488,616
176
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